Summons to Meeting
Thursday 9 July 2020

Overview and Scrutiny
Committee
Friday 17 July 2020, 1.30 pm
Zoom Virtual Meeting
Membership:
Councillor Iain Greaney (Chair)
Councillor Tony Annison
Councillor John Crouch
Councillor Malcolm Grainger
Councillor Joe Holliday
Councillor Adrian Kirkbride
Councillor Paul Scott

Councillor Carmel Bell
Councillor Allan Daniels
Councillor Michael Heaslip
Councillor Daniel Horsley
Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes

This meeting will be broadcast live on the Allerdale Borough Council YouTube™ Channel.
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions
or queries contact Ian Hinde on 01900 702544.

Agenda
1.

Minutes (Pages 3 - 6)
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 19 June 2020

2.

Apologies for Absence

3.

Declaration of Interests
Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to
any item on the agenda, in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct.

4.

Questions
To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by
electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 working days before the meeting.

5.

Public Participation
To hear representations from members of the public on items which appear on
the agenda – submitted in writing or by electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2
working days before the meeting.

6.

Community Safety Partnership, Annual Review (Pages 7 - 22)

7.

Approach to Scrutiny of responses to the pandemic (Pages 23 - 56)

8.

Forward Plan (Pages 57 - 70)

9.

Work Programme 2020/21 (Pages 71 - 74)
To confirm the work programme items for 2020-2021

10. Task and Finish Group/Working Group Updates (Verbal Report)

Chief Executive

Date of Next Meeting:
Friday 28 August 2020, 1.30 pm
Zoom Virtual Meeting

Agenda Item 1
At a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held in Zoom Virtual Meeting on
Friday 19 June 2020 at 1.30 pm
Members
Councillor Iain Greaney (Chair)
Councillor Nicky Cockburn
Councillor Allan Daniels
Councillor Michael Heaslip
Councillor Adrian Kirkbride

Councillor John Crouch
Councillor Malcolm Grainger
Councillor Joe Holliday
Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Carmel Bell and Councillor
Daniel Horsley
Staff Present
W Collins, A FitzGerald, N Hardy, I Hinde, J Irving, L Jardine, G Roach and S Sewell
Also Present
M Fitzgerald (Executive Member: Policy, Governance and People Resources)

13.

Minutes
The minutes of the meeting held on 21 February 2020 were signed as a correct
record.

14.

Declaration of Interests
None declared

15.

Questions
None received

16.

Public Participation
None received

17.

Council Strategy Interim Delivery Plan 2020/21
Councillor Marion Fitzgerald (Executive Member and portfolio holder for Policy,
Governance and People Resources) presented the Council Strategy Interim
Delivery Plan for 2020/21.
Councillor Fitzgerald also provided an update for members in relation to the
impact Covid-19 has on Council finances, advising that the main council income
streams have been severely affected.
With the uncertainty emerging from Covid-19, Councillor Fitzgerald advised that
a previously scheduled four-year plan was not currently appropriate.

Page 3

The interim delivery plan will provide focus, structure and concentrate on short
term priorities and follows the six priorities as set out in the Council Strategy.
An overview of the key projects and activities for each of the six priorities was
provided by the Policy Manager (Corporate Policy and Performance).
Members asked questions and shared comments and feedback on each of the
priorities:
A financially secure Council
Questions were raised on car parking, the Policy Manager confirmed that when
car parks are reopened fees would be charged, Councillor Fitzgerald also was
also confirmed to members that car parking fees would not be increased.
Cleaner, greener Allerdale
Questions were raised on fly-tipping, which is higher than expected for June, it
was not clear whether the re-opening of household waste recycling centres has
mitigated any impacts, but officers confirmed that a project has commenced to
further understand and tackle the issue. Members also expressed concerns
over the recycling performance figures for 20/21. Members asked that
alternative language be used in describing the land for one of the projects removing references to Northside ‘Allotments’. Councillor Fitzgerald agreed to
take this comment to the Executive meeting.
Invest to grow
Questions and comments were raised on community housing and the creation
of the new housing company, it was agreed that the Executive Report on the
creation of the Housing Company would be shared with members.
Outstanding local services
The new Allerdale Waste Company and its performance indicators were
discussed, Councillor Fitzgerald advised that the transition to Allerdale Waste
Services has worked well, including the reintroduction of the garden waste, all
during the Covid-19 pandemic.
Thriving towns and villages
The Council will support local businesses to re-open and will continue to work
on the Maryport High Street and Workington Town Deal programmes. Members
also provided feedback in relation to communication, digital technology and the
visitor economy.
Resilient communities
Members discussed homelessness and health and wellbeing in the community.
Following the government announcements on homelessness, the council
provided accommodation to 100% of residents in need.

Page 4

As a general point on performance measures, members suggested that it would
be useful to see baseline figures for the performance indicators in the Plan.
Again, Councillor Fitzgerald agreed to take this comment to the Executive
meeting where the Interim Delivery Plan was to be considered.
Members noted the contents of the Council Strategy Interim Delivery Plan
2020/21
Councillor Cockburn left the meeting

18.

Proposed Work Programme 2020/21
Members firstly looked at the criteria to select items for the Work Programme
2020/21 and whether the Audit Committee could consider some of the
suggested items.
Members then went through each of the suggested items on the proposed work
programme 2020/21.
Following review and discussion it was agreed remove the following items (but
review and monitor, acting if necessary).
Item 2 - ‘Update and review of Allerdale Waste Services since start of
operations’
Item 7 - ‘Review of the overview and scrutiny section of the Constitution’
Item 13 – ‘Review of proposed development of a stadium’
Item 14 – ‘Governance of the Council's role as a corporate charity trustee’
Item 15 – ‘Analysis of income and spend by geographic area’
Item 17- ‘Completion of focus on ESF funded training provision’
Members also agreed to merge items 4, 5 and 6 for consistency, along with
item 16.
The Work Programme for 2020/21 was provisionally set as follows,











Development of a Resilient Communities Strategy
Update and review of town-based programmes in Maryport and
Workington
Consideration of this Council’s role in the ongoing public health situation,
the next steps from Covid-19 and the impact of pandemic on Council
operations and finances and rural issues, particularly consideration of
addressing social exclusion (Items 4, 5, 6 and 16)
Development of a new Housing Strategy
Development of a new Economic Growth Strategy
Progress report on climate change
Performance Management
Annual update from Community Safety Partnership
Updates from representatives on other scrutiny bodies

Page 5

Councillor Grainger left the meeting

19.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Executive Protocol
Members considered the report and agreed the content, and to recommend the
protocol to Executive for approval and adoption.

20.

Forward Plan
Members noted the contents of the Forward Plan

The meeting closed at 4.00 pm

Page 6

Community Safety Partnerships
2019-20 End of Year Evaluation Report
Partnership
Priority
(reference section of
PCP or CSP Plan)

Page 7

VIOLENT
CRIME/ALCOHOL
& SUBSTANCE
MISUSE
This will be
managed through
the Local Focus
Hubs, Pubwatch
and statutory
partners.

(e.g. locations, age
groups, emerging
issues)

All issues are
now identified
below in the
Action plan
headings

Activities and Projects
See below

Working in partnership,
especially proactive work
with UNITY, obtaining
information on which drugs
are ‘on trend’ people
moving into the area,
being aware of County
Lines and the targeting of
vulnerable people.
Information sharing within
partner agencies.

Evaluation Outputs and Outcomes
See below

Strong links with CADAS are now in place, the organisation have not been
established in West for some time. Through partnership working and building
relationships CADAS have joined the Allerdale and Copeland Hubs since
September 2019.
CADAS also delivered two FREE full day training events to support this
partnership, one in each area. This was gratefully received due to the scarcity
of training of this nature in Cumbria.
Over 40 representatives across the two hubs attended this event which was
of exceptional quality.
Stronger links with Unity have been made and they regularly attend case
meetings and feed into the monthly partners meetings.

Agenda Item 6

Substance
Misuse

Issues
identified

Partnership
Priority
(reference section of
PCP or CSP Plan)

Licensing /
Pubwatch

Issues
identified
(e.g. locations, age
groups, emerging
issues)

Page 8

Activities and Projects

Evaluation Outputs and Outcomes

Awareness raising
information for partners of
what and who is coming
into the area.

Information in relation to syringes reported is now provided monthly by three
partners for Allerdale, to allow more evidence based community priority
setting.
Pubwatch bans have also been handed out to those found abusing drugs
within licensed premises and this supports the work the voluntary and
statutory organisations have been delivering.
Copeland CAP was launched in April 2019 and focuses on the town of
Egremont, surveys were completed by the students of Westlakes Academy,
local businesses and residents and these along with complaints and calls for
service to Partner agencies gave us an evidence base as to where to target
our resources. A multi-agency approach of targeting under age and proxy
sales, educating parents in the health effects of underage drinking of alcohol
and a resource intensive campaign to tackle issues of underage drinking and
associated anti social behaviour at Egremont Crab Fair all resulted in positive
comments received from the organisers, the Police, the Town Council and
residents that the CAP approach had made a significant difference. The
Copeland CAP won the national CAP Award for the Most Improved Locality.

Community Alcohol
Projects (CAP) educating
youths highlighting the risk
associated with alcohol.
Fund the West Cumbria
Pubwatch coordinator
post, the role provides
rapid and efficient
communication about
incidents linked to licensed
premises and offending
within the night-time
economy.
Working in partnership
with licensees, and partner
agencies, to deliver
training opportunities to
licensees.
Best Bar None
False ID Protocol

Millom CAP is led by CADAS and in the process of sending out
questionnaires in order to collate the information on where to target resources
and agree an Action Plan. There have been two meetings so far and is set to
continue into 2020/21.
Allerdale cap was started in January 2020 and it has been decided to deliver
this in Maryport. It plans to build on the award winning schemes in Copeland.
Due to COVID 19 this has been put on temporary hold.
The Best Bar None scheme was introduced in March 2019 across West and
north Cumbria as a joint initiative. 15 venues across our area showed an
interest and 9 joined. The scheme is designed to raise standards in licensed
premises and promote a safe night-time economy linked into the National
scheme. The Cumbria scheme delivered an awards presentation at Carlisle

Partnership
Priority
(reference section of
PCP or CSP Plan)

Issues
identified
(e.g. locations, age
groups, emerging
issues)

Activities and Projects
Ask for Angela campaign
To create a Local Alcohol
Partnership (LAP) to bring
all campaigns under one
project.

Page 9

Monitor individuals who
are nominated to receive a
warning or exclusion for
their troublesome, violent
and disorderly behaviour
linked to the night-time
economy.
To ensure integrity of the
scheme by continuing to
exclude violent and
troublesome individuals
from participating
premises.
The project allows the
deployment of trained
security staff at times
when there is an
increased risk of disorder
(Bank Holidays, festive
period, major sporting
events). The marshalls are
able to make early

Evaluation Outputs and Outcomes
racecourse with over 80 people in attendance from the industry and
partnership. The scheme was also entered into the national awards in the
best new Scheme category and won in that category. The award was
presented to the steering committee at the House of Lords and received
excellent praise from Lord Smith of Hindhead.
The false ID protocol was initiated across the area and this has resulted in
venues submitting false or fraudulent use ID to the police. Police then make
contact with the parents or owners of the ID cards and they are all warned
and advised prior to having the ID cards restored.
Currently there are 9 Pubwatch Schemes active within West Cumbria,
incorporating approximately 268 licensed premises.
During 2019-2020 there have been 39 exclusions, 10 warnings and 17
extensions to bans issued, ranging from 1 month to lifetime exclusions for a
range of incidents (eg, violence, disorderly conduct, drug offences, breach of
current bans etc).
Taxi Marshalls continue to monitor individuals who are nominated to receive a
warning or exclusion for their troublesome, violent and disorderly behaviour
linked to the night-time economy, to ensure integrity of the scheme by
continuing to exclude violent and troublesome individuals from participating
premises. They ensure that current legislation is used where appropriate.
Trained security staff were deployed during the Easter bank holiday weekend
and during the festive period due to the increased risk of disorder during
these times. The marshalls are able to make early intervention to prevent
escalating disorder developing. The marshalls also direct lone individuals
safely to a taxi.

Partnership
Priority
(reference section of
PCP or CSP Plan)

Page 10

MODERN DAY
SLAVERY
This will be
managed through
multi-agency
partnerships in the
Local Focus Hubs.

Issues
identified
(e.g. locations, age
groups, emerging
issues)

Activities and Projects
intervention to prevent
escalating disorder
developing, and direct
lone individuals safely to a
taxi.

A number of bottled water packs were given to a representative of the Street
Angels to support their work in helping to keep people safe when enjoying a
night out in Whitehaven.

Ongoing awareness and
refresher training to front
line service to report any
concerns of modern day
Slavery via the LFH.
Feedback to be provided
through the Hub to ensure
all partners are aware of
prevalence and can feed
into own strategies
Regular monthly briefings
are provided to all partners

A monthly communication is now shared across all partners. Following on
from the Train the Trainer event that was held in December it is intended that
a training event will be held in Allerdale and Copeland for the frontline staff of
all partner agencies raising awareness of modern day slavery and indicators
as to look for and how to report them. This will be carried into 2020/21.
Links have been made with the Modern day Slavery Human trafficking team
at Police HQ and a talk delivered to the Allerdale partnership to raise
awareness.
Two referrals into the Allerdale Hub were received regarding the issue of
MDS and as a result two victims of MDS were placed into safety with full use
of the PCC links with the Salvation Army and the issue of two comfort
kits/bags to the victims. Persons still under investigation for these offences.

Training event
DOMESTIC
ABUSE
Actively support
the countywide
work being
undertaken on
domestic and
sexual abuse.

Evaluation Outputs and Outcomes

The process was underway to provide de-fib training through the North West
Ambulance Service for licensees in the Egremont & Cleator Moor Pubwatch
Scheme, however this has now been put on hold due to Covid 19.

Partnership
Priority

Issues
identified

Page 11

(reference section of
PCP or CSP Plan)

(e.g. locations, age
groups, emerging
issues)

Activities and Projects

Evaluation Outputs and Outcomes

Women out West

Multi-agency

Support the move to have
a women’s centre and
services in West Cumbria
and promote within own
organisations once
established to ensure it
reaches all potential
clients

The Women Out West Centre is now established in Whitehaven and the
Allerdale and Copeland Partners’ meetings have had a presentation at the
monthly meetings highlighting the type of work and the projects that have
been carried out to date. There is also a referral system that the Hubs use to
refer any women that they feel would benefit from the WOW services. This is
a fantastic service and receives many positive comments and is much
needed in West Cumbria and has the full support of both Local Focus Hubs.

Domestic Abuse
Champions

Multi-agency

To sustain a dedicated
core group of domestic
abuse champions in the
area from partner
organisations. Cumbria
Domestic Abuse
Champion Network offer
free awareness training to
partners.

A grant application was approved at for funding for a DA Champions training
via County Council Public health and Cockermouth Rotary.
Three sessions were completed 2.5 hrs each. Approximately 60 champions
delivered after the events, mostly local community members.

Name of the
county wide Action
Plan

Multi-agency

Work in partnership with
the Safer Cumbria
Strategic Domestic &
Sexual Abuse Board and
support the county-wide
action plan.

Partner agencies of the Allerdale and Copeland Hubs support the work
around domestic violence. Attendance at MARAC meetings where action
plans are agreed to reduce recurrence of incidents. Information sharing
between partners for early detection of potential issues. Signposting of victims
and perpetrators to appropriate services. Work with partners to consider
alternative actions to assist with safeguarding e.g Injunctions.

Partner organisations to
actively support the work
of the county-wide action

Partnership
Priority
(reference section of
PCP or CSP Plan)

Issues
identified
(e.g. locations, age
groups, emerging
issues)

Activities and Projects

Evaluation Outputs and Outcomes

plan to deliver on its
outcomes.
Partner organisations
have an understanding of
The Bridgeway Centre
based in Penrith, be aware
of it and signpost
individuals (victims).

Page 12

To work in partnership to
raise awareness of the
Bridgeway Centre.
REDUCING REOFFENDING
To maintain the
Integrated
Offender
Management
program and
encourage the use
of restorative
justice.
Offender
Management

Multi-agency
working

Work as a multi-agency
partnership, have a
coordinated approach to
reduce re-offending from
the most prolific offenders.
Utilise Restorative Justice,

Consideration is made at each referral multi agency meeting and priority
targets that are agreed at the Partners’ monthly meeting as to whether
onward referral to Restorative Justice, Its Your Choice and Prevent & Deter
where appropriate.

Partnership
Priority
(reference section of
PCP or CSP Plan)

Issues
identified
(e.g. locations, age
groups, emerging
issues)

Activities and Projects
It’s Your Choice and the
Prevent and Deter panel
where appropriate.

Page 13

Continue to Link in with the
Integrated Offender
Management Program
(IOM), Community
Rehabilitation Company
(CRC), The National
Probation Service and
Remedy.
ANTI SOCIAL
BEHAVIOUR
To work with
partners to reduce
ASB, engage with
the community and
deliver positive
projects to address
community
concerns and
make use of
current legislation,
to be delivered by
the Local Focus
Hubs.

Evaluation Outputs and Outcomes
Links are maintained with the Integrated Offender Management Program and
the Probation Service. A list of prison releases is included in the monthly
multi agency Community Tasking document which is discussed at the
Partners’ monthly meeting.
Hub managers attended the JAG meetings of the IOM to determine greater
links and how we can share information. IOM staff are regularly hot desking
within both hubs to provide those links
Remedi operates from the Copeland Hub at least one day per week.

The bulk of work around ASB is delivered through the referral processes of
the two hubs. A total of 128 referrals were submitted into the Allerdale Hub
and 101 were closed as completed and resolved successfully. The Copeland
Hub had a total of 38 referrals with 34 closed successfully. The referrals
covered all facets of ASB and included noise, neighbour disputes, youth
disorder, drug misuse to name but a few problems. These problems are
resolved via the strong Hub partnership links that exist. The referrals are
strengthened by the Monthly partnership tasking meetings that identify priority
targets, priority locations, community priorities and emerging trends. These
are decided upon by the partnerships.
The reduction in ASB reported to the police in the period was 25.5%. This is a
reduction of 724 incidents across West Cumbria. The referral process has
now been strengthened by it mirroring the OSARA problem solving
mechanism that is the proposed processes endorsed by the College of
Policing.

Partnership
Priority
(reference section of
PCP or CSP Plan)

Page 14

Identify emerging
and seasonal
issues and
problem areas in
order to develop
actions to reduce
anti-social
behaviour and
associated
criminality.

Issues
identified
(e.g. locations, age
groups, emerging
issues)

Activities and Projects

Evaluation Outputs and Outcomes

Use gathered information
from all agencies to set
priority locations, subjects,
community issues and high
risk issues to enable
resources to be targeted to
reduce ASB and increase
community cohesion.

Excellent progress has been made in Allerdale to support evidence based
priority setting and community intelligence gathering. Since relocating to
Allerdale House the monthly Community Tasking report now includes data
from Fire and Rescue, Home Group, Westfield Housing, Castles and Coasts,
Allerdale Borough Council and Police.
The Copeland Community Tasking report also includes data from partner
agencies and forms the basis of our discussions when agreeing priority
locations, priority targets, community issues and emerging trends. Specific
multi agency meetings are held for each priority location to agree an action
plan to address the issues.

Reduce potential for gang
infrastructure to embed in
the community by
delivering opportunities for
education and by using
crime tackling initiatives.

Both hub managers attended a combatting gangs and violent crime
conference in Manchester and this led on to the ongoing knife crime project
currently on hold due to COVID 19 and explained elsewhere in the report.
‘Hub on Tour’ Copeland partners set up a drop in centre for people to come
and report their concerns directly, this was carried out in Whitehaven Town
Centre and will look in the future to set up in other areas.

Improve
perceptions of
crime and antisocial behaviour.

Improve community
perceptions of crime and
anti-social behaviour
through positive messages
though media outlets
including the use of the

‘Slice of Advice’ Allerdale partners mirror the Copeland drop ins and these
have been created to run throughout 2020 beginning in February
Multi agency knife crime project has commenced to obtain an overview of the
perceptions of knife crime in young people. Enthusiasm have been
commissioned to complete the engagement and research element of the
project. This project has had excellent engagement from extended partners
including BTP, GNAS, security staff, supported accommodation providers and
sports clubs.

Partnership
Priority
(reference section of
PCP or CSP Plan)

Issues
identified
(e.g. locations, age
groups, emerging
issues)

Activities and Projects

Evaluation Outputs and Outcomes

Local Focus social media
pages.

The Allerdale Local Focus Hub facebook page currently has 1800 members
and this is growing month on month. This is used to update the followers on
raising awareness, provide advice and update on Focus hub activity. Allerdale
Borough Council media team have capacity to update this feed along with
Cumbria Police and regularly do so.
The Allerdale NPT send out a monthly newsletter to parish Councils and
anyone signed up to receive this. This provides the necessary updates for the
community on key messages and good news stories.

Page 15

The Copeland Local Focus Facebook Page has now 4196 Members and is
regularly used to update our members to raise awareness of particular issues,
share good news stories and to respond to requests.
The Copeland Neighbourhood Policing Team also send out a monthly
newsletter to the Parish & Town Councils, key partners and schools with
appropriate information and news for their areas.

Youth engagement

Encourage and increase
youth engagement within
partnership with all the
youth providers in the
area.
To continue to roll out the
Future Pathways and
JASS (Junior Award
Scheme for Schools)
projects in schools.

Neighbourhood Watch Coordinator feeds in any information to the Partners’
monthly meeting.
The area CYPO has completed the following throughout this period:Projects:
Junior Citizen Scheme - June and July over 4 days for primary school
children - project for 12 primary schools which teaches on:
Drug/alcohol awareness, water safety, fire safety, CPR, ASB, railway safety
Brathay – intervention for victims of CSE
NCS – summer July and August project for year 11 school leavers on
problem solving
Upcycle – alternative provision - education for children not in mainstream
education
Training:
Safeguarding yearly training 2019 + 2020

Partnership
Priority
(reference section of
PCP or CSP Plan)

Issues
identified
(e.g. locations, age
groups, emerging
issues)

Activities and Projects

Evaluation Outputs and Outcomes

Page 16

Gang violence
County lines
Mental health first aid
Prevent
Drugs and addictions course
Adverse Childhood Experiences
Challenging Behaviour training
Regular monthly/weekly meetings:
Prevent and Deter
CSE reviews
Early help panel
Inclusion panel
CIN/TAF (when requested)
MFH intervention
Visit to care homes
School presentations:
2019
May
CSE lessons- West Lakes Academy
Malicious comms – st Joseph’s
June
ASB – St Benedict’s x 4
Online safety – Plumbland primary
Alcohol awareness – Keswick
July
ASB – Cockermouth
ASB – West Lakes Academy
September
Online safety & CSE – Beacon Hill
ASB & alcohol – West Lakes Academy
CSE - Solway

Partnership
Priority
(reference section of
PCP or CSP Plan)

Issues
identified
(e.g. locations, age
groups, emerging
issues)

Activities and Projects

Evaluation Outputs and Outcomes

Page 17

October
Online safety – Seaton primary
Knife crime/prison input – Fairfield Primary/Seaton primary/St Joseph’s
/Beacon Hill/UTC
ASB focus group - Netherhall
Online safety – Dearham primary
November
Malicious comms – Workington Academy
Online safety – St Patrick’ s primary
ASB – Cockermouth
CSE – Richmond house
Bullying – Workington Academy
December
Knife crime – Whitehaven Academy
Online safety – Holme St Cuthbert primary
Sexual heath – Lakes college
2020
January
Knife crime – WCLC
Drugs – Workington Academy
County lines – Nelson Thomlinson x5
Online safety – Kirkbampton primary
Online safety – Dearham primary
February
Online safety – Kirkbride primary
Alcohol abuse awareness – Beacon Hill, Keswick, Solway, Cockermouth,
West Lakes Academy, Whitehaven Academy, Nelson Thomlinson
Online safety – Silloth primary
County lines – Nelson Thomlinson x2

Partnership
Priority
(reference section of
PCP or CSP Plan)

Issues
identified
(e.g. locations, age
groups, emerging
issues)

Activities and Projects

Evaluation Outputs and Outcomes
Brathay Trust have also been engaged with the hubs to deliver the Be Savy
programme designed to combat child Sexual exploitation. The current
scheme has 9 persons initially attending and this was curtailed due to COVID
19. This is an ongoing project that will continue through 2020.

Page 18

The Copeland Hub regularly engages with the youth providers in Copeland.
Two particular streams of work have been tackling youth anti-social behaviour
in Egremont which involved working closely with Egremont Youth Partnership,
this work including outreach work and identifying individuals that were
causing nuisance to residents and buinesses and the work through the
Copeland CAP. Egremont Youth Partnership received the PCC’s Above and
Beyond Award in recognition of their work.
The Future Pathways programme funded by Morgan Sindall has seen
another successful year. 8 students from Mayfield School completed the
programme, whilst a further 12 students from Whitehaven Academy and 8
students from Westlakes Academy also graduated. Unfortunately, the cohort
that was due to start at UTC in March has had to be postponed due to the
Covid-19 pandemic.
The Junior Award Scheme for Schools (JASS) entered its second year and
124 students from St James’ Junior School at Whitehaven and Bookwell
Primary School at Egremont received their Bronze Award certificates and
badges.
Representatives from the Copeland Hub have also visited Westlakes
Academy to receive two school talks from outside agencies on topics that are
current multi agency projects. Knife crime and underage drinking. This is to
gauge the students’ reactions to the topics and to gain a better understanding
of the issues and how we can tackle them.

Partnership
Priority
(reference section of
PCP or CSP Plan)

Collaborative
working

Issues
identified
(e.g. locations, age
groups, emerging
issues)

Activities and Projects

To encourage partnership
working, the use of hot
desking and the availability
of meeting rooms that can
be used by partner
agencies.

The relocation of the Allerdale Hub has encouraged more collaborative
working. Representatives from CADAS, Home Group, Castles and Coasts,
Cumbria County Council, and IOM regularly hot desk at this facility. The
benefits of this environment are in some cases intangible but very visible.
Relationships are being naturally developed and problems are being solved
quickly and effectively due to the right people being together in one place.

To engage with the rural
and farming community to
reduce criminality.

The Copeland Hub is located in Whitehaven Police Station and is self
contained with separate access for partner agencies. Regular hot desking
and use of the 2 designated meeting rooms by our partner agencies ensures
a regular flow of people and more importantly information which is key to
collaborative working. There is a fully signed Information Sharing Agreement
in line with GDPR. Monthly partners’ meetings are well attended. Regular
visitors to the Hub are: Copeland BC, Home Group, Castles & Coasts,
CADAS, Remedi, Fire Service, IOM, Youth Offending Services
PCSO’s going into the auctions and giving crime prevention advice,
SelectaDNA. Visiting farms and doing the same. Also, regular meetings with
Landowners and interested parties involved in legal/illegal hunting activities.

To communicate
effectively to reduce
isolation.

Also using Country Watch West FB page (although, this is still a work in
progress). PCSO with rural area designation. Regular visits in line with crime
prevention media and engagement plans.

To target through agency
working and police activity,
persons who are active in
wildlife and rural crime.

Working with the RSPCA to carry out warrants on individuals suspected of
committing wildlife crime (badger baiting, animal welfare offences, cock
fighting). There have been 10 warrants carried out in 2019/2020, firearms
seized from one address along with many dogs and 69 cockerels.

Page 19
Wildlife & Rural
Crime

Evaluation Outputs and Outcomes

Partnership
Priority
(reference section of
PCP or CSP Plan)

Issues
identified
(e.g. locations, age
groups, emerging
issues)

Page 20

Activities and Projects

Evaluation Outputs and Outcomes

To deliver a crime
prevention message to the
community.

Also, working with National Park Authority, Forestry Commission in relation to
off-roading. Three warning letters sent out, three people reported for relevant
offences and one under investigation at the moment.
Poaching – training carried out for wildlife officers by deer stalkers from the
Forestry Commission. Two poaching operations took place in Borrowdale
Valley due to rise is poaching activity. One male reported for RTA offences
and another arrested for drug driving. No reports of poaching in the area
since the second operation. This is still being monitored.
Volunteers – three volunteers vetted to help with operations.
Two Duke of Edinburgh Award students volunteering to help with wildlife and
rural crime initiatives.
Week of action, as well as Op Checkpoint – patrols in rural areas to combat
crime and gather intelligence.
Mini Police – beach clean. Educating children on plastics and the
environment.
Bid for funds from PCC to purchase SelectaDNA. This is being given free to
farmers at risk of theft as a deterrent.
Operation Owl 2019 – Whinlatter raising awareness of raptor persecution.
Training arranged for officers with the RSPB to educate on raptor persecution
and offences relating to wild birds (postponed because of Covid).
Training arranged for officers in October 2020 – Protection of Badgers,
Hunting and the Law. To be delivered by the League of Cruel Sports and
Badger expert.
Working closely with Marketing and Communications to get information and
news out on social media and press.

Partnership
Priority

Issues
identified

(reference section of
PCP or CSP Plan)

(e.g. locations, age
groups, emerging
issues)

Activities and Projects

Cyber Crime

Cumbria CSPs

Work in partnership to
reduce and inform the
public of the emerging and
increasing incidents of
cyber-crime (fraud,
bullying, hate crime)
especially with high risk
groups.

Evaluation Outputs and Outcomes
From June 2019 to present there have been 7 ‘Get Safe Online’ sessions
held in West Cumbria, with a total of 137 attendees. Positive feedback was
given following each of the sessions.
A session that was booked for 16th March, with a further 22 attendees, was
cancelled due to the outbreak of Covid 19.

Page 21

The 3 CSP’s will work in
partnership to manage the
Police Cyber Protect
Programme.
Child Sexual
Exploitation

Cumbria CSPs

To raise awareness of
CSE, educating front line
staff to refer to the
safeguarding hub.

The hubs engaged with Brathay Trust to deliver the Be Savy project that will
run for three years. At present the latest scheme has 9 girls on the periphery
of CSE and the project is designed to give them key skills in combatting
exploitation.

Production of an
information leaflet to be
provided to Taxi drivers on
CSE.

The local councils now have a safeguarding procedure in place and all taxi
drivers across the area must deliver a safeguarding understanding during the
knowledge check. Police have delivered training in this to key staff to enable
this to be progressed.
Further information on this subject is delivered by the Children’s officer in her
report above.

To encourage LA to
introduce safeguarding for
all new and existing taxi
drivers.
Domestic Homicide
Reviews

Cumbria CSPs

To build and share
expertise between
Community Safety

A total of three Domestic Homicide Reviews were received into the CSP in
this period. This resulted in the vast bulk of the coordinators time being taken
up with managing these. All three now have appointed chairs and will report

Partnership
Priority
(reference section of
PCP or CSP Plan)

Issues
identified
(e.g. locations, age
groups, emerging
issues)

Activities and Projects
Partnerships in regards to
Domestic Homicide
Reviews working with all
Community Safety
Partnerships within
Cumbria.
DA/SA Group.

Evaluation Outputs and Outcomes
on their findings in 2020. Due to the nature of the DHR confidentiality no
further information is available in this report.

Page 22

Agenda Item 7
Allerdale Borough Council
Overview and Scrutiny Committee– 17 July 2020
Approach to scrutiny of responses to the pandemic

The Reason for the Decision

This report sets out the issues and possible
approaches the Committee can consider in
scrutinising the Council’s role and response
to the Covid-19 pandemic and its effects on
local communities.

Summary of options considered

Outlined in the body of the report.

Recommendations



Financial / Resource Implications

There may be resource implications for staff
time depending on the chosen approach.

Legal / Governance Implications

There are no direct implications.

Community Safety Implications

There are no direct implications.

Health and Safety and Risk
Management Implications

There are no direct implications.

Equality Duty considered / Impact
Assessment completed

This report is not considered to have any
particular implications at this point.

Wards Affected

All

The contribution this decision would
make to the Council’s priorities

The role of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee contributes to all Council
Strategy priorities.

Is this a Key Decision

No

Lead Scrutiny Member

Councillor Iain Greaney

Lead Officer

Ian Hinde
Policy Officer (Scrutiny and Partnerships)
01900 702544
ian.hinde@allerdale.gov.uk

That the Committee considers the
report and agrees how it wishes to
approach this topic area in terms of
scope and methodology.

Page 23

Report Implications (Please delete where applicable).
Community Safety

N

Employment (external to the Council)

N

Financial

N

Employment (internal)

N

Legal

N

Partnership

N

Social Inclusion

N

Asset Management

N

Equality Duty

N

Health and Safety

N

Background papers:
Outbreak Control Plan Part 1 – Strategy, Management and Oversight
https://www.cumbria.gov.uk/elibrary/Content/Internet/535/17941/17942/44012124112.pdf
Outbreak Control Plan Part 2 – Operational Response
https://www.cumbria.gov.uk/elibrary/Content/Internet/535/17941/17942/44012124238.pdf
Situation report 30 June 2020
https://www.cumbria.gov.uk/elibrary/Content/Internet/535/17941/17942/17945/44012124419
.pdf?timestamp=440139227

1.0

Background to the report

1.1

At its previous meeting the Committee agreed to combine three potential
items for its work programme into a single item. These were:
 consideration of the Council’s role in the ongoing public health situation
and the ongoing role for councils in test and trace activities;
 consideration of the Council’s role in recovery - how is the Council able
to support businesses and communities?;
 consideration of the ongoing implications for the organisation both
financially and operationally, including consideration of alternative
working practices adopted during the pandemic and their effectiveness.

1.2

The Committee now needs to identify if there are any specific issues or areas
of interest to pursue. These could focus on the immediate response to the
crisis and any lessons to be learned, or on preparedness for the future either
in the predicted second wave of the current situation.

1.3

The Committee will need to consider this area of work in the context of its
overall programme. Should the Committee wish to include this work in
committee meetings, it may be necessary to consider additional meetings
throughout the year.

Page 24

2.0

The task

2.1

The Committee now needs to decide how to approach this overall topic and
whether there are any specific aspects it wishes to explore in greater detail.

2.2

The attached report at Appendix 1, Allerdale Borough Council Covid-19
Recovery Strategy, sets out four themes for the work now being undertaken.
This approach could be adopted as a structure for the work the Committee
wishes to undertake because it covers the previously identified aspects listed
in 1.1 above.

2.3

The finance report at Appendix 2 and the briefing note on test and trace,
Appendix 3, provide the Committee with a fuller description of these issues.
The papers linked in Background Papers at the beginning of the report give
the public health response which is currently being consulted on until the end
of the month (31 July).

2.4

Having read the background papers and appendices the Committee need to
consider how they wish to focus their work on these topics with a view to
adding the most value.

2.5

Members are reminded that they are already due to follow the progress of the
development of a new Economic Growth Strategy and a Resilient
Communities Strategy and these may already provide enough opportunity to
assist with policy development around supporting businesses and
communities through recovery.

3.0

Possible methodologies

3.1

The Committee could elect to address the topics during committee meetings.
While there is some capacity in the current work programme to enable this,
the opportunities to do so are currently later in the year, unless additional
meetings were to be arranged.

3.2

The Committee could set up one or more task and finish groups to explore
specific aspects. These groups can compromise committee members alone,
other council members, and community representatives or relevant persons
with expertise, or any combination from these groups with a member of the
Committee chairing the group.

3.3

Alternatively the Committee could choose to adopt a rapporteur arrangement
where one or two Councillors receive a briefing from the named lead officer
for each of the four themes as above then discuss the issues with the officer
on behalf of the committee and report back their findings to the committee.

4.0

Recommendation

4.1

It is recommended that:

Page 25

1. That the Committee considers the report and agrees how it wishes to
approach this topic area in terms of scope and methodology.

Ian Hinde
Policy Officer (Scrutiny and Partnerships)

Page 26

ALLERDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL
COVID-19 RECOVERY STRATEGY

Summary
The COVID-19 crisis has had a significant impact across Cumbria and the focus to date has
been on the immediate co-ordinated response to support the county during the lockdown
period. Although this work will continue for some time, preparations are now underway to
manage the phased opening up of the area, and to plan ahead for the longer term
challenges that will begin to become clearer as we emerge from the lockdown period.
Our work for planning Allerdale’s recovery must focus along four broad themes:
1.
2.
3.
4.

economic impact, support and recovery;
response and stabilisation of the virus pandemic and its impacts;
residents, communities and their health and wellbeing, and
impact on the Council including our services, transformation and financial security.

This work will be undertaken in a way which fully involves all stakeholders in the area in
order to develop the best possible forward plans. While the strategic objectives identified in
the Council Strategy 2020-2030 remain our overarching priorities, we must also develop a
Recovery Strategy and Interim Delivery Plan that resets and repositions our focus to the post
COVID-19 challenges and opportunities the borough of Allerdale now faces.

Introduction: The Need for a Recovery Strategy
Recovery planning is essential to drive the recovery phase of COVID19, to support
Allerdale’s residents, the economy and businesses, reform the delivery of public services
and consider the financial resilience of the Council and how it will need to operate differently,
learning the lessons from the pandemic.
To this end, we have established Allerdale Borough Council’s Recovery Group to provide
officer leadership to the strategic co-ordination and delivery of Allerdale’s recovery response.
Terms of Reference have been agreed.
Alongside our Recovery Strategy, we must prepare an Interim Delivery Plan that resets and
repositions our focus to the post COVID-19 challenges and opportunities that Allerdale now
faces. Arguably, the six strategic objectives set out in Allerdale’s Council Strategy 2020-2030
– namely delivering a financially secure council, a cleaner and greener Allerdale, investing to
grow, providing outstanding local services, thriving towns and villages and building resilient
communities – are even more critical and everything we do as a council must continue to be
aimed at improving the lives of our residents both now and for the future. Together, these
documents will play a key role in shaping the future of the borough over the coming years.

Context and Scope
Our approach to recovery is critical to support Allerdale’s residents, the economy and
businesses during this rapidly changing situation. It will also enable reforms to be made to
the delivery of public services across the region and for the Council to make sustained
changes to how it operates internally. The recovery work will also include the financial

Page 27

recovery required for the Council given the very significant impacts that the pandemic has
had on the financial position of the Council.
The start-point and phasing of the recovery will be influenced by national policy decisions
that the Government makes as the health crisis evolves over the coming weeks and months.
It is critical that Allerdale starts to plan forwards now for the recovery phase at this time of
national uncertainty, as well as continuing to deliver the immediate response phase
effectively.
This document sets out the key principles that underpin Allerdale’s approach to recovery and
the broad strategic themes into which our recovery activity is grouped.
Those themes each represent a significant programme of activity that will have short,
medium and longer term priority actions. There are important and multiple interdependencies
between the activities within the themes. The ABC Recovery Group will co-ordinate that
activity.

Principles
The principles driving Allerdale’s approach to recovery are:


Aspiration – Our approach to recovery must be ambitious and aspirational – we
don’t just want to return to normal but should seek to get to a place that was better
than before. We can use the experience to modernise working practices, improve the
customer experience, build closer working relationships with partners and drive a
more resilient economy in the longer term.



Influence – Our ABC Recovery Group must take an active role in influencing the
regional approach as well as lobbying and shaping the national policy position so far
as possible. We must work with Government, MPs, media, CLEP, county council and
stakeholders/partners to ensure that we are provided with the support, funding and
assistance we need to deliver priority recovery activity.



Delivery – we will actively contribute to COVID-19 response and recovery for the
benefit of Allerdale residents through provision of planning, housing and
homelessness services, business support, licensing, environmental health,
parks/leisure and digital services.



Intelligence – Our approach to recovery will be based on intelligence gathered at a
local level and will be place-based. Data will be used to compile impact assessments,
build evidence and monitor/measure recovery activity.



Partnership – We will work with partner organisations and agencies to ensure that
our residents and businesses receive the support they need for recovery. We will aim
to make recovery sustainable in the long term by integrating with existing structures
(LEP, Community Safety Partnership, Allerdale Local Focus Hub, Allerdale Health
and Wellbeing Forum) rather than create a standalone Strategic Recovery Unit just
for this purpose.



Transformation – we will build on our success in the response phase of the
pandemic to ensure that we manage and develop new ways of working and a culture

Page 28

that will allow us to continue to provide excellent levels of customer service and
modern working practises that survive beyond recovery and into the ‘new normal’.

Allerdale’s Strategic Themes
The elements of recovery are complex and far reaching across all aspects of our response
to the COVID-19 pandemic. As a district council, we must not only consider our approach to
recovery within our own organisation but also for our residents, communities, businesses
and our ability to influence the wider health legacy for the area.
We will, therefore, group our approach to recovery along four broad themes:

1. Economic impact, support and recovery
This work includes immediate work such as supporting local businesses and employers as
well as stabilising the local economy. However, we must also develop a strategy that is
ambitious and aspirational that will allow for stimulation and development of a more resilient,
inclusive and green economy in the longer term. The Council must fulfil its role as leader and
influencer in assisting businesses with the challenges that the pandemic has brought but
also delivering an economic recovery that goes beyond relying on what came before.
Recovery will bring with it lots of opportunities for Cumbrian businesses to diversify or enter
new market segments and we must provide assistance, support and thought leadership to
help them fulfil that potential.
Of course, a phased approach to exiting lockdown will still have broad and deep
consequences for our national and regional economies but, until we have clarity on what the
precise approach is, it is difficult to predict the economic impacts on the local economy. It is
probably prudent to plan for a recovery period of at least three years and to not expect the
economy to bounce back rapidly.
Given the significant uncertainty as to how the national and local economy will recover, our
recovery work will need to be capable of being adapted to a rapidly changing situation.
We must continue to contribute to the LRF’s Business Economic Recovery Group and work
closely with existing networks, including CLEP in delivering their ‘Restart, Reboot, Rethink’
strategy.

Allerdale must focus on:
a. Developing an economic recovery plan for Allerdale that:
o can evolve and be tailored to respond to our economic requirements as the
position on the phased exit from lockdown becomes clearer and our
understanding of the impacts on the borough are better understood. This will
require good qualitative place-based information to be gathered as well as
tracking a mix of traditional and new economic indicators;
o examines the impact to the labour market and articulates responses;
o ensures that as many businesses as possible continue to operate safely;
o identifies where resources are needed in order to fill in any gaps left by
national programmes that are supporting business recovery, particularly in
those leisure, tourism and hospitality businesses in Allerdale that are “falling

Page 29

o

o

through the cracks”. Lobbying to fill gaps needs to be amplified quickly to
prevent the extinction of businesses;
assesses the impact on the visitor economy including the culture, leisure,
hospitality, events and night time economy offer. Consideration of
interventions to support the resilience of those elements of the economy
which are likely to be the last to open up due to the challenges associated
with social distancing; and
review existing strategies to determine if any new interventions are needed.

b. Continuing to deliver the national programmes of support grants and developing
any discretionary schemes (including for retail, hospitality and leisure)
c. Sustain confidence in the residential and commercial development market by
continuing to encourage pre-planning discussions, progressing planning applications
to decision, and concluding the necessary legal arrangements for projects that will
drive our growth objectives and have a demonstrable capacity to deliver quickly.
d. Encourage new development in the Allerdale district. This, in turn, will be critical
to sustaining employment in construction and related sectors, and their supply
chains. This is an essential element of effective and sustainable recovery, and will
also help bolster our tax base going forwards.
e. Continue to progress economic regeneration schemes including work on
accessing funding for the Towns Fund in Workington, the Future High Street Fund
and Heritage Action Zone in Maryport, the Growth Deal funding from CLEP at
Lillyhall and look to other investment and regeneration opportunities with
development partners and the Allerdale Investment Partnership.
Longer term, there are opportunities for the Council to have a role in key interventions, which
subject to funding being secured at a national, regional or local level, could take the form of
contributing to the development of those proposals or actually delivering them directly.
Proposals could take the form of:

f.

Supporting our business base – many businesses will be saddled with debt and
traditional approaches to support and lending may no longer be appropriate. We
should be working with partner agencies and Banks to develop ideas about platforms
for recapitalising businesses which, but for the crisis, had strong market prospects
and the potential to generate new local employment opportunities.

g. Labour Market Interventions - we will need to give consideration to what labour
market interventions need to be introduced if the Government does not wish to
engage. Some form of localised labour market initiative needs to be considered,
targeted at those residents who were disadvantaged in the labour market prior to
COVID-19 e.g. NEET young people and over 50s who will now be further
disadvantaged.
h. Skills for Recovery - Following the end of the Government furlough scheme, there
is a risk that many Allerdale residents will become unemployed and those who work

Page 30

in retail, tourism and hospitality are at particular risk. There will need to be an agile
and flexible skills offer to retrain those local residents, working with employers where
there are job opportunities
i.

Transport, Infrastructure and Planning – work with Cumbria County Council,
developers and other organisations to promote development of opportunities for
infrastructure, road improvements and potential opportunities for the port of
Workington.

2. Response - Testing, Tracing and PPE
This work includes our contribution to testing, tracking and tracing the virus and its impacts.
The success of the recovery will be significantly influenced by the success of contact tracing
and testing. On 23 April, the Government announced that a National Contact Tracing
Service (NCTS) would be established as part of a wider test, trace and track approach,
which will be aligned to national and local testing strategies. The Government’s app is still
under development.
There will also be a collaborative approach with local and national partner agencies to
ensure that the national Public Health England model is co-designed and developed in a
way that works for the communities of Allerdale.
We will progress our approach to procuring suitable PPE and testing equipment – including
antibody testing – for our staff and other workers at the earliest opportunity and thereafter
monitor and manage the situation to build up resilience within the organisation.
Our staff will play an active role in intervening to implement the requirements of the new
coronavirus regulations and national guidance as well supporting partner organisations. For
example, Environmental Health Officers have been identified by the Government as
additional resources to implement response activity and to regulate compliance with
regulations. Equally, licensing officers will be required to review licences and, if necessary or
appropriate, apply additional or modified conditions.
We will continue to provide a weekly situational awareness report to the county’s Recovery
Advisory Group to include an overview of our various service areas that may impact on the
multi-agency recovery and any known forecasted activities.
The information we supply is amalgamated with that of other agencies to ensure the RAG is
sighted on current and future recovery activity across the Cumbria Resilience Forum. This
will support early co-ordination of activities across the Sub-Groups.

3. Community Support and Health & Wellbeing
The work will be to manage our approach to the wider health legacy of the COVID-19
pandemic and to support communities including addressing family poverty, homelessness
and unemployment.
We will consider how residents and communities across the district are supported as we
move out of the current restrictions and importantly, how we continue to best support

Page 31

residents at greater risk as we move from the response phase into recovery. Those at
greater risk include residents on the NHS ‘shielded’ list and those with wider risk factors - in
terms of health inequality, poverty and poor economic outcomes, those with social risk
factors, those with a wider set of medical issues, and those with a combination of these
factors. This includes factors such as social isolation, domestic abuse, those with low
income or in receipt of benefits, those in insecure, low-paid work, the ageing population, and
those with other long term medical conditions.
Allerdale contributes to existing health and wellbeing networks to bring together data and
intelligence to understand which people are at greater risk, to enable intensive support to be
targeted effectively during the recovery period. Work is co-ordinated and delivered through
the Allerdale Health and Wellbeing Forum, linking with the multi-agency Local Focus Hub,
Integrated Care Communities, Children’s Trust Board, Allerdale Work and Skills Partnership
etc. The Council will build on and develop existing and new relationships to offer targeted,
effective and long term support and assistance, through recovery and beyond.
It is likely that the Allerdale Community Response Hub that has been established to support
vulnerable residents will need to remain in place for some time. This is an additional service
which will need to be resourced and will be reflected in the Council’s revised budget.
Work to support communities will vary regionally and locally across communities within
Allerdale. As a district council we have the benefit of being closer to communities across a
wide range of issues and can use that locality-based intelligence on issues such as poverty
and deprivation, community resilience, relationships, vulnerable families, unemployment and
neighbourhood matters to develop a place-led activity program that is tailored to the needs
of our individual communities.
By working with partners and analysing equalities impacts, we can more fully understand
how specific adverse impacts can be minimised. Some affected groups include:












Ethnicity - Black, Asian and minority ethnic (BAME) communities have
disproportionately suffered from COVID-19 and are particularly vulnerable to both the
health and economic impacts of the pandemic;
Gender - women are more exposed to COVID-19 through greater presence in health
and care occupations, while men have suffered from a higher death rate; women are
at greater risk of domestic violence during lockdown;
Age - older people are more vulnerable to COVID-19, particularly those with serious
medical conditions and have been more affected by the social effects of self-isolating
during the response phase;
Disability - those who rely on care and those with serious medical conditions have
been particularly affected;
Children with Special Education Needs and Disabilities (SEND) have been
particularly affected by schools closing and the difficulties for them receiving the
support they need;
LGBT communities are more likely to have poorer health outcomes
Poverty - the economic impacts of COVID-19 will affect the poorest families hardest
and the clear link between poverty and health conditions mean the virus will also
medically affect the poorest disproportionately.

Page 32

4. ABC operations, duties and transformation
This work includes ensuring sustainability of new ways of working that have been developed
during the response to COVID-19 and ensuring resources are aligned to maintain high levels
of performance for our customers. Consideration must be given to how the Council will adapt
to a phased release (and ramping up) of the lockdown and what this means for service
delivery.
This theme will consider the changes that the Council will make to how it operates during the
recovery period, building on the success and learning from our experiences during the
COVID-19 period. This includes new ways of working, with large-scale home and remote
working for the majority of our staff, who have quickly adapted to digital tools for running
meetings and new ways of working effectively with customers. There is also potential to build
on the positive experiences of our elected members by carrying the momentum of virtual
meetings (legislation permitting) through recovery and beyond. We hope to ensure that
Allerdale’s members continue to benefit from the use of digital technology through easier
and improved opportunities for engagement with democratic processes, training,
development and more.
The Transformation and Commercialisation Programme as well as the work on designing
our new Operating Model is being reshaped and will now directly support the recovery work.
Activity will include:
a. Continuing to modernise working practices. This will support continued remote
and home working during the phased exit from the lockdown arrangements and in
the long term thereafter. The work will include:
o Creating a long-term resource management function that facilitates a flexible
and agile approach to working across departments, aligning our resources to
our priorities and offering development opportunities to our staff.
o the continued support and training for Microsoft 365
o video conferencing technology through Microsoft Teams
o a new and easier to use intranet via Workplace
o roll out of improved telephony and mobile devices
o equipping meeting rooms for video conferencing to enable attendance at
virtual and hybrid meetings
o ensuring clear protocols around the tools and equipment needed to work from
home (second screens, office chairs and desks)
o developing a common, consistent approach to keeping in touch that is
effective and doesn’t negatively impact on productivity by taking up too much
time.
b. Our properties – with more people working remotely more of the time, our
organisation will not need as much office space and each member of staff will no
longer require their own individual permanent desk. We must develop a plan for how
we operate Allerdale House and our area offices. Feedback to our staff surveys
suggest that a hybrid model could work best as many staff consider that there
remains the need to have the ability to work from the office as and when required.
While we can and should consider whether we need an office at all, it could prove
difficult to hold together a culture and optimise productivity without a central place of
work of some format.

Page 33

c. Improved data management - ensuring there are clear policies for handling, storing
and archiving data (including documents and emails) with the appropriate security in
place. This is even more important for an organisation that is predominantly working
remotely.
d. Continued focus on digital transformation – we will continue working to improve
how customers can engage and interact with the Council.
e. More agile and effective decision making – bringing the learning from COVID-19
response into the development of our governance framework including quick decision
making, regular communication with Councillors and strong relationships between
the Executive and Scrutiny.
f.

Practical activity to change how we work in response to COVID-19 - alongside
transformational change activity, the Council will need to take a series of practical
steps in the short term to change the way we provide services to customers and to
ensure that our working practices are safe, compliant and effective as we move from
the response phase into recovery.
Property Services and Corporate Health & Safety have developed processes and
undertaken risk assessments to protect the safety of our staff. Guidance includes:
o Office staff should work from home if at all possible.
o Planning for the minimum number of people needed on site
o Monitoring the wellbeing of employees who are working from home
o Keeping in touch with off-site employees including welfare, mental and
physical health and personal security
o Staggering arrival/departure times to reduce crowding in and out
o Providing additional and spaced out parking or bike racks
o Reducing congestion, for example by having more entry points to the
workplace.
o Handwashing or hand sanitation at entry and exit points
o Review layouts, line setups, or processes to let employees work further apart
o Arranging for employees to work side-by-side or facing away from each other
o Screens to create a physical barrier between people
o Floor tape or paint to mark areas to help employees keep to a 2-metre
distance
o Avoiding use of hot desks and spaces
o Using remote working tools, to avoid in-person meetings
o Avoiding transmission during meetings, avoiding sharing pens
o Only necessary participants should attend meetings
o Hand sanitiser in meeting rooms
o Limiting or restricting occupancy in group interaction spaces
o Introducing more one-way flow routes through buildings
o Reducing maximum occupancy for lifts, providing hand sanitiser for the
operation of lifts, and encouraging use of stairs
o Regulating use of corridors, lifts, and staircases
o Staggering break times to reduce pressure on the break rooms, using outside
areas for breaks

g. Reviewing service delivery – with reference to business impact assessments for
business continuity and service delivery plans, managers and Heads of Service

Page 34

should use their professional experience and expertise to develop service-specific
recovery plans to include any changes to work processes, recommendations for how
high levels of performance can be maintained, risks that are presented by COVID-19
and mitigating steps as well as a plan setting out how phased recovery will work.

Next Steps
1. Agree the approach set out in the Recovery Strategy and the Terms of Reference for
the ABC Recovery Group;
2. Meet weekly to progress the role of the ABC Recovery Group in providing leadership
on the strategic co-ordination and delivery of Allerdale’s recovery plan;
3. Utilise the ABC Recovery Group to actively influence the county-wide LRF Recovery
Advisory Group’s approach to local and regional recovery;
4. Use our position on the LRF Recovery Advisory Group to ensure that it actively
lobbies and shapes the national policy position so far as possible;
5. Heads of Service and Managers to develop service-specific recovery plans for each
service area to plan for service delivery and phased recovery;

Page 35

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36

Allerdale Borough Council
Executive – 24 June 2020
Budget 2020-21 – Financial Impact of Covid-19

The Reason for the Decision

To update the Budget position to inform
of the financial impact of Covid-19 on the
authority

Summary of options considered

This report presents proposals to the
potential budget pressures arising from
the Covid-19 Pandemic. This is to
ensure that the Council meets its
statutory duty to maintain a balanced
budget position.
The budget position will be monitored
monthly to ensure that the ongoing
impacts of the pandemic can be
identified, and corrective action taken
where necessary.

Recommendations

1) That the report be noted
2) Delegate to the S151 Officer in
consultation with the portfolio
holder for Finance and Legal, the
increasing of the expenditure
budget for the Business Grants –
Discretionary Scheme for small
businesses by the amount of grant
allocated of £1,995,000
3) Delegate to the S151 Officer in
consultation with the Monitoring
Officer and Portfolio Holder for
Finance and Legal the variation of
income payment terms and any
associated contractual variations
4) Agrees that reserves are
protected by not allowing carry
forwards of underspend into this
financial year except in
exceptional circumstances
5) That Members review the position
on a monthly basis and give

Page 37

delegated authority for the S151 to
release additional sums from
General Fund balances to address
the budget position

Financial / Resource Implications

As set out in the report.

Legal / Governance Implications

S 114 of the Local Government Finance
Act 1988 requires the S151 Officer, in
consultation with the Council’s Monitoring
Officer, to report to all the authority’s
Members if there is, or is likely to be, an
unbalanced budget.

Community Safety Implications

None directly

Health and Safety and Risk
Management Implications

The budget contains provision for the
Council to discharge its obligations under
health and safety legislation, and to
maintain a reserve in order to manage
risks.
There are also risks that the Council will
not be able to operate within agreed
budgetary provisions, but this can be
minimised by the financial monitoring
process and by the prudent policy on the
level of reserves and balances.

Equality Duty considered / Impact
Assessment completed

As part of the budget growth bids and
savings bids process.

Wards Affected

All

The contribution this decision would
make to the Council’s priorities

The revenue budget is set to support the
Council in achieving priorities through the
Council Plan and to facilitate control of
expenditure on its activities.

Is this a Key Decision

Yes

Portfolio Holder

Councillor Jim Lister
Portfolio Holder for Finance and Legal

Page 38

Lead Officer

Catherine Nicholson, Head of Financial
Services
catherine.nicholson@allerdale.gov.uk
01900 702503

Report Implications
Community Safety

Y

Financial

Y

Legal

Y

Partnership

Y

Social Inclusion

Y

Asset Management

N

Equality Duty

Y

Health and Safety

Y

Employment (internal)

N

Employment

N

(external to the Council)

Background Papers: Revenue and Capital approved budget 2020-21, MHCLG
financial returns and working papers, Government COVID-19 guidance and
notifications

1.0

Introduction

1.1

Since the Council approved its Revenue and Capital Budgets for 2020-21 the
ongoing Covid-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on the Council’s
finances. These impacts started to be felt before the introduction of the
lockdown started on the 23rd March 2020 and will continue as the lockdown
starts to ease and our local economy opens again.

1.2

This report will look at the latest forecast financial position for 2020-21 and
identify the emerging pressures on our ability to deliver on the approved
budgets.

1.3

It will also look at the range of financial support that is available from Central
Government to assist us and our communities during the period of the
pandemic.

1.4

The report will also assess how this crisis will affect the financial resilience of
this authority and how the aftermath will affect the assumptions made in our
Medium-Term Financial Strategy.

Page 39

2.0

Estimated Impact on Revenue Budget 2020-21 due to COVID-19

2.1

The summary table below sets out the budget as approved by Council for
2020-21 with the estimated impacts of Covid19 against this to show an
updated budget position for this financial year. The Covid19 impact is
estimated for the full year based on the experience of additional spend and
lost income between March and May 2020.

Table 1: 2020-21 Revenue Budget

Base Budget
Change in salary costs - recurring
Recurring growth per 2020/21 original budget
Recurring savings per 2020/21 original budget
Recurring growth - COVID
Recurring savings - COVID
Recurring (base) budget
Change in salary costs – non-recurring
Non-recurring growth
Non-recurring savings
Non-recurring growth - COVID
Non-recurring savings - COVID
Net Expenditure
Expenditure on earmarked priorities
Proposed Budget (excluding parish precepts)
Parish precepts
Proposed Budget (including parish precepts)
Less: Planned use of earmarked balances
Net Budget Requirement

2.2

2020-21

COVID
Impact

2020-21
Update

£000

£000

£000

11,449
146
1,041
(396)
0
0
12,240
0
756
(194)
0
0
12,802
190
12,992
2,458
15,450
(190)
15,260

0
0
0
46
0
0
46
0
0
6,665
(2,992)
3,720
0
3,720
0
3,720
0
3,720

11,449
146
1,041
(350)
0
0
12,286
0
756
(194)
6,665
(2,992)
16,522
190
16,712
2,458
19,170
(190)
18,980

This indicates a potential increase in the Net Budget Requirement of £3.72
million should the impact experienced to date be continued for the full
financial year.

Page 40

2.3

The Table below shows how this amended budget position would be funded:

Table 2: 2020-21 Revenue Funding
COVID
Impact

2020-21

Revenue support grant
Rural Services Delivery Grant
Other government grants (New Homes Bonus)
Other government grants (Levy Surplus)
Other grants
Council tax – excluding parish element
Council tax – parish element
Collection fund surplus/(deficit) - Council Tax
NNDR funding - inc s31 grants
Collection fund surplus/(deficit) - NNDR
Less Transfer of s31 Grant to Earmarked Reserves
Use of /(contribution to) General Fund Balances
Total funding

£000
199
326
606
0
0
5,400

£000

2020-21
Update

0
0
0
0
968
0

£000
199
326
606
0
968
5,400

2,458
21
6,112
138

0
0
5,541
0

2,458
21
11,653
138

0

(5,541)

(5,541)

0
15,260

2,752
3,720

2,752
18,980

2.4

In order to maintain a balanced budget there would be a requirement to
release £2.752 million from General Fund balances. This would drop the level
of reserves available to £596,000 which is significantly below the agreed
minimum retained balance of £2.7 million and is therefore not sustainable.
(see section 8).

3.0

Additional Expenditure due to Covid-19

3.1

The table below summarises the additional spend the authority anticipates it
will have to incur because of the pandemic.

Page 41

Table 3: 2020-21 Additional Expenditure

Activity / service Area

Description

Revenue & benefits
overtime costs
IT costs
Zoom licences
Homelessness - additional cost
Waste collection

Actual Actual
April
May
£
£
2,353
1,288
1,000
0
12,959 22,920
72,000 72,000

June to
March
£
0
0
25,918
144,000

Estimated
full year
impact
£
3,641
1,000
61,797
288,000

88,312 96,208

169,918

354,438

3.2

There has not been significant areas of increased spend yet due to Covid-19.
Whilst the authority has had staff who have had to shield and self-isolate
during the lockdown period, the impact of this has been minor. Spikes in
demand in certain areas have been managed by flexible working and
redeployment between teams. Some additional costs have been incurred for
staffing and IT, but again this are not material.

3.3

One of our earliest additional spend areas has been the ongoing requirement
to house homeless and rough sleepers in Allerdale from the start of the
lockdown. The average number of homeless presentations accommodated
before the pandemic was around 7 but following the lockdown restrictions
there has been a three-fold increase in the number of people presenting
requiring accommodation.

3.4

Another early concern for us was around the need to keep out Waste
Services operating, and bins collected and emptied. Concerns were raised
about the need to review the working arrangements to comply with the
increased cleaning regimes and social distancing requirement. Should the
crews be impacted by staff sickness or the need to go to Driver only in the
vehicles, contingency plans have been made.

3.5

The Covid-19 crisis has disrupted our transformation and efficiency
programmes and there are several planning savings built into the budget that
can no longer be delivered in the original timescales. Managers are currently
reviewing their service areas and drawing up recovery plans to address future
working in the recovery period. As part of this review they are also identifying
areas where further transformation activity can be programmed. The
organisation has worked swiftly and adapted well to the challenges presented
over the last few months and it is important that we can learn lessons from
this crisis for our future operating model.

4.0

Lost or Reduced Income due to COVID-19 situation
Sales, Fees and Charges

Page 42

4.1

The current approved budget for 2020-21 includes approximately £10 million
of income from sales, fees and charges. Several of these income streams
have been turned off or significantly impacted due to the lockdown measures
that have been in place.

4.2

The majority of this income is taken directly to the revenue budget and so any
reduction will be an immediate pressure on the budget. Ultimately if no
compensating action is taken then this will put pressure on reserves.

4.3

The table below summaries the estimated lost or reduced income:

Table 4: 2020-21 Lost or Reduced Income
Activity /service Area

Car Parks
Camping & Caravan Site
Workington Town Centre
Trade Waste
Recycling
Domestic Waste
Planning and Development
Building Control - Chargeable
Bereavement Services
Industrial Units
Tenanted Properties
Land Charges Service
Markets
Assistance - Housing Services
Festivals & Events

Actual
April

Actual
May

June to
March

£
342,629
33,333
0
57,413
27,317
1,960
46,313
24,238
5,000
20,000
12,000
11,345
8,338
2,185
1,000

£
1,362,224
333,334
142,900
117,922
0
5,545
48,543
9,627
4,000
40,000
28,000
22,690
41,234
18,972
4,000

£
1,950,563
400,000
212,900
226,600
95,027
10,036
94,856
46,779
16,000
74,000
55,250
44,535
57,910
29,657
5,000

547,051 593,071

2,178,991

3,319,113

245,710
33,333
70,000
51,265
67,710
2,531
0
12,914
7,000
14,000
15,250
10,500
8,338
8,500
0

Estimated full
year impact

4.4

The largest impact is on our carparks, which following government guidance
were only open for key workers and essential trips and were made free. In
Keswick two of the carparks were closed to assist with requirements to “Stay
and Home and Protect the NHS”.

4.5

The Loss of income for the Camping & Caravan site is estimated at £33,333
per month which equates to a forecast loss of £400,000 for a full year.
Camping sites were instructed to close by the Government in March and are
still awaiting confirmation of when they can re-open.

Page 43

4.6

Workington Town Centre rental income is paid quarterly and due to store
closures, no rental income was received in April. The current forecast is that
no additional rental income will be received for the remainder of the current
financial year.

4.7

Due to the significant number of businesses that were required to close as
part of the lock down rules, there has been a temporary suspension of Trade
Waste collections and hence a corresponding drop in income. Recycling has
also reduced during the period.

4.8

Where invoices are raised there may be delays in payment terms. Debtors
are encouraged to call the Council as soon as possible if they are
experiencing difficulties with making payments. To date, only a handful of
requests, mainly from tenants in commercial properties, to spread payments
over the latter part of the financial year. It is recommended that the
negotiation on changes to payment terms and contractual terms is delegated
to the S151 and Monitoring Officer in consultation with the relevant Portfolio
Holder.

4.9

It is worth noting that this is still early in the financial year and there is a real
potential that payments due from May and June onwards will be a more
significant test of the impact.

Council Tax and National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR)
5.0

Council Tax

5.1

The amount of council tax income available to the Council’s general fund is
fixed at the level determined when the council tax is set. Based on the 202021 tax base of 30,905.23 the amount of Council Tax income receivable for this
financial year is £5,399,762.

5.2

This amount is paid out of the Council’s Collection Fund regardless of how
much council tax is collected during the year.

5.3

If more council tax is collected than expected there will be a surplus on the
Collection Fund. If less is collected than expected, then there will be a deficit
on the Collection Fund. Any surplus or deficit must be considered in the next
year’s budget – ie 2021-22 financial year.

5.4

Council Tax collection rates are already 0.50% lower than expected in April
(approximately £60k). The impacts of Covid19 are likely to see further
reductions in the recovery rates as a result of payment failure and default.

5.5

There are also likely to be significant increases in the number of local council
tax support claimants as this financial year progresses.

Page 44

5.6

Both of these have the potential to increase the deficit or lower the surplus in
this financial year which will then have to be considered when setting the
budget next year.

5.7

They will also have the potential to lower the taxable capacity (tax base) of the
borough thereby limiting the amount of income that can be raised through
Council Tax.

5.8

A broader further implication is that the potential economic consequences on
the house building sector may result in lower levels of growth in the council
tax base in the future.

6.0

National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR)

6.1

Under the business rates retention scheme, 40% of business rates (NNDR)
collected is retained by the Council. The remainder is paid to Central
Government (50%) and Cumbria County Council (10%). The scheme also
provides that certain sums are to be treated as being outside the scheme and
retained in their entirety by the Council (or by the Council and the County
Council).The Council is also able to retain the growth in the local share of
business rates, subject to the payment of a levy to central government,
designed to prevent disproportionate increases in the Council’s funding as a
result of growth in business rates income.

6.2

The amount of business rates income available to the Council’s general fund
and taken into account when setting the budget, is based on an estimate
made in January preceding the start of the financial year and included in the
government return NNDR 1 (i.e. January 2020 for the 2020-21 Financial
Year).

6.3

The estimate of business rates income considers any projected changes in
the tax base, estimated losses due to appeals and expected collection rates.
The amounts paid to the County Council and central government and the
amount retained by the Council are fixed at the outset of each year (based on
the estimates included in the Council’s NNDR 1 return). Consequently, any
difference between estimated amounts and the actual amounts receivable will
result in a surplus, or deficit on the Council’s Collection Fund.

6.4

The NNDR1 form fixes a significant portion of NNDR income available to the
Council’s general fund for the financial year, it does not fix the:
• levy the Council pays to the Cumbria business rates pool
• retained levy that the Council receives back from the pool or
• grant it receives from central government to compensate for certain business
rate reliefs (section 31 grant)
• the balance of amount payable or receivable in respect of the preceding
years disregarded income (renewable energy reconciliation adjustment).

Page 45

6.5

Amounts relating to levy payments and section 31 grant are based on the
Collection Fund outturn position rather than on the estimates included in the
NNDR 1 return. As a member of the Cumbria wide business rates pool, the
net levy payable also considers the Collection Fund outturn positions of other
pool members. Therefore, the amount of income the Council receives and
pays in relation to these items is subject to change over the course of the
financial year. The renewable energy reconciliation adjustment is based on
the previous year’s outturn position.

6.6

In 2020/21 the main elements of the NNDR income at risk of change are the
level of section 31 grants and the Levy payable (net of reduction under pool
arrangements). The former includes the increase in s31 grants receivable
during the year as result of the additional and extended reliefs introduced to
COVID -19 (including the increased and expanded retail scheme) of £5.541m.
The amount of s31 grant will also be impacted by other changes, compared to
NNDR 1 estimates, in the actual amount of reliefs awarded and for which the
Authority receives compensation in the form of a s31 grant.

6.7

The additional s31 grant awarded to the Authority in 2020/21 to cover the cost
of the extended and additional reliefs introduced in response to COVID -19
must be accounted for in the year (2020/21). However, because the demands
on the collection fund in respect of business rates are fixed prior to the start of
the financial year, the cost of those additional reliefs in the Collection Fund
(i.e. the Authority's share of the collection fund deficit generated by the
additional reliefs) will not be borne by the general fund until 2021-22. To
offset the significant fall in business rates income in 2021-22 it is therefore
recommended that the additional s31 grant received this year is transferred to
an earmarked reserve to be released in 2021-22.

6.8

In addition to the impact of the additional reliefs awarded other potential, but
unquantified, consequences of the pandemic include





Changes to the growth in business rates as a result of lower economic
growth
losses arising from non-payment
losses arising from empty properties
changes in the value of reliefs not compensated for through S31 grants

7.0

Financial Support available to Allerdale BC from Central Government

7.1

The additional financial support from central government can be broken down
into three areas of support:




7.2

additional funding to support Allerdale BC
Cash flow
Grant funding to support businesses

Table 5 below sets out a summary of the additional funding to support
Allerdale:

Page 46

Table 5: Additional Funding
Measure
Covid -19 emergency funding
Covid -19 emergency funding tranche 2
Council Tax Hardship Fund

Relates to
which
year
£
64,382
2019/20

Amount

Additional
or to offset

Date
received

Additional

27/03/2020

967,863

2020/21

Additional

11/05/2020

910,462

2020/21

Additional

03/04/2020

6,001

2019/20

Additional

Homelessness Funding
Reopening High Streets Safely
Fund
Local Authority Discretionary
Grant Fund (LADGF)
Extended and Additional
Business Rates Reliefs (billing
authorities only)

86,416

2020/21

Additional

1,995,000

2020/21

Additional

01/04/2020

5,541,000

2020/21

Offset

Instalments
commenced
May 2020

Total

9,571,124

7.3

Covid19 Emergency Funding - The first tranche of funding announced on 19
March was primarily to meet the increased demand for and enable additional
support across adult social care; meet the additional costs of providing
children’s social care; provide additional support for the homeless and rough
sleepers; support those at higher risk of severe illness from COVID-19; and
meet pressures across other services.

7.4

The second tranche of funding, announced just over 4 weeks after the first
announcement, is aimed at getting rough sleepers off the streets, supporting
clinically vulnerable people and providing assistance for the public health
workforce. It is also to reflect financial pressure being felt by councils resulting
from lower use of fee-paying services (e.g. car parks and leisure facilities).

7.5

Council Tax Hardship Fund –As part of its response to COVID-19, the
Government announced in the Budget on 11 March that it would provide local
authorities in England with £500m of new grant funding to support
economically vulnerable people and households in their local area. Allerdale
Borough Council has been allocated £910,462.
The Government expects that billing authorities will primarily use their grant
allocation to reduce the council tax liability of individuals in their area, using
their discretionary powers under s13A(1)(c) of the Local Government Finance
Act 1992.
Allerdale Borough Council will provide all recipients of working age local
council tax support(‘LCTS’) during the financial year 2020-21 with a further
reduction in their annual council tax bill of up to £300, using our discretionary
powers to reduce the liability of council tax payers outside of our formal LCTS
scheme design.

Page 47

Allerdale Borough Council do not require any recipient of LCTS to make a
separate claim for the reduction under this part of the scheme. We will identify
who is eligible for support from the hardship fund and automatically rebill
those council taxpayers.
Additionally, some of the funding will be allocated to deliver increased
financial assistance through other local support mechanisms, such as the
Community Resilience and Welfare groups.
7.6

Homelessness Fund - To meet the cost of providing accommodation and
services to rough sleepers, and those at risk of rough sleeping, who are
suffering from or at risk of coronavirus.

7.7

Re-opening High Streets Safely Fund -To prepare for the reopening of nonessential retail. This funding is intended to support a range of practical safety
measures including new signs, street markings and temporary barriers. Local
authorities will also be able to use this money to develop local marketing
campaigns to explain the changes to the public and reassure them that their
high streets and other commercial areas are safe.

7.8

Extended and Additional Business Rates Relief - Additional section 31 grant
to compensate the Authority for the loss on business rates income arising
from expansion of the retail discount scheme (relief increased to 100% and
scheme extended to cover occupied retail, leisure and hospitality properties in
the year 2020-21, nursery discount and reinstatement and extension of pub
relief . Total additional cost of the expanded retail scheme and bursary
scheme is estimated at £13,557,177. The cost of the extended pub relief is
£285k. The Authority's share of these additional and extended reliefs - funded
by s31 grant is estimated (40%) to be £5,541k.

7.9

Table 6 below sets out the support to assist the cash flow position:

Table 6: Cash flow
Measure

Amount

Relates
to
which
year

Additional
or to offset

Date
received

£
2020/21 BR s31 advance

2,298,326.00

2020/21

Cash flow
measure only

27/03/2020

Deferment of central share of
Business rates

3,769,155.00

2020/21

Cash flow
measure only

3 month
deferral

6,067,481.00

7.10

Business Rate S31 advance - Advance payment of the S31 grant amounts
calculated on NNDR 1 2020-21 Part 1C, which were due for payment during
2020-21 to ease local authority cash flows. The grant amounts have been

Page 48

paid in an upfront lump sum. These would normally be paid in instalments
over the course of the 2020-21 financial year.
7.11

Deferral of payment of central share of NNDR -The 9% due on each of 30
April, 19 May and 22 June in respect of the Central Share of business rates
will be paid at a date to be determined, later in the financial year.

7.12

Table 7 below sets out the grant funding to support Allerdale businesses:

Table 7: Funding for grants administered by the Authority
Measure
Grant Funding schemes SBGF
and RHLGF – and Discretionary
fund

Relates Additional
or to
to
Amount
offset
which
£
year
42,194,000.00 2020/21
N/A

Date
received
01/04/2020

42,194,000.00

7.13

Grant Funding Schemes - The government initially announced two grant
funding schemes. The first is for small businesses claiming small business
rate relief (SBRR) and they are eligible for a grant payment of £10k. The
second scheme is for those businesses with property in the Retail, Hospitality
and Leisure sectors. The grant is £10k for those where the rateable value is
up to (and including) £15k and if the rateable value is over £15k but less than
£51k then the grant is £25k. The allocation awarded was £42,194,000 of
which £1,995,000 was subsequently reallocated by government to support the
Local Authority Discretionary Grant Fund (LADGF) - see above. In
administering these grants, the Authority is acting as agent for the Department
for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS). Neither the s31 grant
nor the grant paid to eligible businesses are therefore included in the
Authority's Income and expenditure account (or general fund). New burdens
funding, which will be income to the Authority has yet to be announced.

7.14

Discretionary Grant Fund – On 1st May 2020 the Government announced a
discretionary funding scheme, administered by Local Authorities, to support
businesses affected by COVID19. Allerdale has been allocated £1,995,000.
To administer the grant effectively a Local Authority Discretionary Grants
policy has been approved.
The policy outlines the Council’s intention to consider grants based on the
Government’s priorities and the additional inclusion of supply chain
businesses affected by the mandated closure of businesses due to COVID19
(tourism, hospitality and retail) and manufacturing businesses. These two

Page 49

sectors have been added having been identified within the Council’s Business
Growth strategy as key sectors and in consultation with other local authorities
and business support organisations. The policy has been developed in
consultation with other Cumbrian local authorities as per the Government
guidance.
The guidance from Government allows the Council to use discretion in terms
of the criteria. Several options were considered by the Council but after
consultation it has been determined that the initial focus should be on the
Government’s priorities and the two additional areas of supply chain
businesses to those businesses mandated to close and manufacturing.
The Council has been unable to quantify the level of eligible businesses in the
planning of this programme, however based on numbers of rateable
properties, business census and number of people declaring themselves as
self-employed the number could exceed 1,000. It is for this reason that the
Council has reserved the right to give consideration to the levels of funding
awarded in the first round of funding and the potential for future funding
rounds. The level of funding received from Government would enable the
Council to award 80 grants of £25,000. The policy therefore recommends that
the maximum grant to be considered is £10,000. This would mean the Council
was able to support a minimum of 199 businesses.

8.0

Impact on the Reserves and Balances

8.1

General Fund (GF) balances are a part of our risk management process and
are retained to protect the authority in the event of major unforeseen events
as well as provide a buffer against future financial risks in the medium term.
Holding the appropriate level of reserves enables the organisation to manage
the demands placed on us in these circumstances.

8.2

The current approved minimum level of General Fund (GF) balances has
been set at £2.7 million, based on the assessment of anticipated risks and
uncertainty around the future of local government funding. The risk
assessment did not factor in the potential of a national lock-down due to a
worldwide pandemic.

8.3

Based on the worst-case example of the impacts of the lockdown lasting for
the full financial year then as set out in section 2 above, then a further £2.752
million would be required to be released from reserves.

8.4

The opening position on GF Balances can be seen in the table below:

Page 50

Table 8: Estimated General Fund balances - per original 2020/21 budget

Opening Balance at 1 April
Add: transfer (to)/from Earmarked
Reserves
Less: Use to finance 2019-20 Capital
Programme
Less: budgeted use of GF to support
2019-20 Revenue Budget
Forecast revenue Outturn variance
Less: Use to fund 2020-21 Revenue
Budget
Less: Use to fund 2020-21 Capital
Budget
Less: Projected Revenue
Surplus/(Deficit) per MTFP
Projected Balance at 31 March
Less Retained - Minimum Balance
Available for use

8.6

2019-201
£000
3,890

2020-21
£000
3,357

2021-22
£000
3,348

2022-23
£000
1,376

678

0

0

0

0

0

0

(9)

0

0

0

(1,972)

(1,791)

3,348
(2,700)
648

1,376
(2,700)
(1,324)

(415)
(2,700)
(3,115)

(129)
(1,082)

3,357
(2,700)
657

Table 9 below, updates the GF balances position should £2.752 million have
to be released to cover the financial impact of Covid-19. This indicates that
by the end of 2020-21 the balance will fall to £596k which is significantly
below the minimum retained level of £2.7 million. The impact of using these
balances in 2020-21 also means that there is no cushion available to cover
the already forecast shortfall in the budget anticipated from 2021-22 onwards.

Table 9: Updated GF Balances following Covid19 impact

Opening Balance at 1 April
Add: transfer (to)/from Earmarked
Reserves
Less: Use to finance 2019-20 Capital
Programme
Less: budgeted use of GF to support
2019-20 Revenue Budget
Forecast revenue Outturn variance
Less: Use to fund 2020-21 Revenue
Budget
Less: Use to fund 2020-21 Capital
Budget
Less: Projected Revenue
Surplus/(Deficit) per MTFP
Projected Balance at 31 March
Less Retained - Minimum Balance
Available for use

2019-201
£000
3,890

2020-21
£000
3,357

2021-22
£000
596

2022-23
£000
(1,376)

678

0

0

0

(2,752)

0

0

(9)

0

0

0

(1,972)

(1,791)

596
(2,700)
(2,104)

(1,376)
(2,700)
(4,076)

(3,167)
(2,700)
(5,867)

Page 51

(129)
(1,082)

3,357
(2,700)
657

9.0

Next Steps

9.1

Monthly returns are being completed to MHCLG on the estimated financial
impact that this pandemic is having on local authorities and officers will
continue to monitor the financial position on a monthly basis.

9.2

The Account and Audit regulations have now extended the deadline for the
preparation of the accounts from 31st May 2020 to 31st August 2020 and the
deadline for the audited accounts to be approved pushed back from 31 st July
2020 to 30th November 2020.

9.3

It is expected that Council’s outturn position will be reported to Executive next
month which will detail the requests for carry -forwards of budget from 201920 to 2020-21. As there is significant potential to call on GF balances this
year, which is unsustainable after this financial year, we must protect these
reserves wherever possible. For that reason, it is recommended that carry
forward of underspent budgets are only approved in exceptional
circumstances.

10.0

Conclusion

10.1

This report recognises the exceptional circumstances that this pandemic has
caused the authority and the seriousness of the financial impact it is having on
both the organisation and our residents and businesses as well as the wider
national and global impact.

10.2

The full impact on our budget will emerge as the restrictions are lifted and the
timing and scale of any further central government funding is announced. The
timing and scale of central governments support to local authorities is crucial
to our ongoing financial health.

10.3

As well as the financial implications for the Council’s budget position, there
are going to be long term implications for our local economy, and this makes
future financial planning very difficult and significantly more uncertain at this
stage.

10.4

Although we are faced with uncertainty and challenging times ahead, it is
important that we learn from the crisis and particularly from the way we have
had to adapt and find new ways of delivering our services in the future.

Catherine Nicholson
Head of Financial Services (s151 officer)

Page 52

Briefing Note - GW
Covid 19 – Structure to support contact tracing and
outbreak management

Since the commencement of lockdown, our Environmental Health team has
continued to focus on public health safety and in particular has;


Provided advice and guidance to businesses modifying their operations for
reopening
Played a key role in supporting and enforcing the business closure
regulations
Investigated complaints associated with business closures, noise and antisocial behaviour.




Over recent times, it has become apparent that the team will need to continue and
further develop its role in the fight against Covid. In particular, the team will be
required to support the government’s development and delivery of a contact tracing,
testing and outbreak management system. On 23 April, the Government announced
that a National Contact Tracing Service (NCTS) would be established as part of a
wider test, trace and track approach, which will be aligned to national and local
testing strategies. The national contact tracing system is expected to operate at four
broad levels:





Automatic: an app-based platform that automatically alerts people to
possible contact with a positive case and directs them to testing.
Level 1: Local systems for managing the most complex outbreaks, or
outbreaks with the most complex implications.
Level 2: Regional teams of health professionals (approximately 3,000) –
currently being recruited
Level 3: National teams of call handlers (approximately 15,000) – system
outsourced to Serco.

The Cumbria approach to outbreak management is based around the following key
elements:
Surveillance and case finding
To establish networks that will enable rapid case finding and referral through primary
care, schools, care homes, and larger employers in the County. Ultimately, these
networks should expand to include a much wider range of community organisations
that can provide valuable local intelligence. These networks will identify symptomatic
people, advise them to self-isolate, and inform a central contact point to arrange
contact tracing and advice provision.

Page 53

As the national contact tracing service is established and grows in scale and scope,
it will feed in to our local surveillance and case finding system and will alert us locally
to outbreaks that would best be managed locally.
Central contact point
To establish a central contact point for notification of cases and potential outbreaks.
Ultimately, this is likely to morph mainly into the Single Point Of Contact for the
national and regional systems to alert us to outbreaks, but initially it will also pick up
individual cases. This central contact and co-ordination point will be located within
the County Council Contact Centre, with professional support from the Public Health
Team.
Appropriate data system
To establish a central shared data system for managing the contact tracing and
outbreak control process. In the very early stages of implementation, the NCIC
sexual health service contact tracing system will provide a local solution. This will
rapidly be enhanced by a bespoke database that will be accessible by a range of
partners in order to ensure that cases and contacts are appropriately logged and
followed up.
Team of contact tracers
In the immediate term sexual health service staff supported by District Council
Environmental Health Officers, and public health staff will undertake contact tracing.
In the short term, it may be that this group needs to be supplemented further, with
appropriate training provided. In the longer term it is unlikely that this will be
sustainable as more staff return to their usual duties; however by this stage the
national contact tracing system will be fully embedded so there will be less
requirement for local tracing capacity.
Access to testing – and the results of testing
It is unlikely that the testing capacity to manage this system through local channels
will be sufficient; ultimately we will therefore be reliant on the national Pillar 5
delivering timely test results. In the early days however it will be necessary to utilise
local testing channels in order to get the system established in a timely manner. The
existing lab capacity in North Cumbria and Morecambe Bay will be able to integrate
their processes with the North Cumbria sexual health services effectively to ensure
rapid communication of test results.
Capacity to manage and respond to outbreaks
This work will build on the experience of the existing Outbreak Control Team that is
focused on outbreaks in care homes, and on the existing capacity and expertise
within Environmental Health Teams, the Public Health Team, NHS Infection
Prevention and Control staff, and Public Health England. In the short term, this can
be managed within existing resources: however, as with contact tracing, in the longer

Page 54

term this is unlikely to be possible as more staff return to their mainstream duties.
Additional resources totalling 1.7m have been awarded to Cumbria from the national
£300 million allocation to support this part of the system and discussions are ongoing
in relation to what the funding can support.
The first grant condition states: In two tier areas, this grant is conditional on upper
tier authorities working closely with their lower tier partners and ensuring those
partners are given opportunities to deliver the outcomes this grant is meant to
support where delivery by those cases, it is essential that upper tier authorities
provide sufficient resources to lower tier authorities within the former’s allocated
funding so that the latter can carry out any responsibilities that they are asked to
undertake
It is clear that EH resources are required to focus on contact tracing and outbreak
control as well as business reopening. Therefore, the team has been temporarily
restructured to allow one Senior EHO, Emma Bundock, to become operational lead
for contact tracing and outbreak control. In the short-term an agency EHO has been
employed supported by two members of the EH team however, this may need to
increase should the volume of work increase. This allows the existing SEHO on the
Food and Occupational Health team to focus on supporting businesses to reopen
safely.

Governance structure
The Cumbria Health Protection Board has now been established to oversee the local
response to Covid-19 as the focus of that response moves from national command
and control with local civil contingencies action led by a Strategic Co-ordination
Group, towards a locally-led, longer term approach.
The Health Protection Board will assume the responsibility for setting local health
protection strategy and co-ordinating multi-agency action in support of the delivery of
this strategy. In addition it will oversee the development of local policy and process
relating to testing, contact tracing, outbreak control and scaling up to wider area
outbreak management. In partnership with the national Joint Biosecurity Centre, it
will be responsible for recommending any more stringent local countermeasures.
The Board will work with a Member-led Outbreak Engagement Board (using the
existing Public health Alliance) to establish adequate political involvement with this
work and to develop good communications and engagement with the wider public
about the local Covid-19 response in order to ensure that there is strong local
support for the strategy and measures being adopted.
Membership
The Health Protection Board is chaired by the Director of Public Health and includes
appropriate strategic officers from the following organisations:



Cumbria County Council
Allerdale Borough Council

Page 55

















Barrow Borough Council
Carlisle City Council
Copeland Borough Council
Eden District Council
South Lakeland District Council
Public Health England
NHS England
North Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group
North Cumbria Integrated Care NHS Trust
Morecambe Bay Clinical Commissioning Group
University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Trust
Cumbria Constabulary
Cumbria Third Sector Network
Community Emergency Response Groups (represented by CVS)
National Joint Biosecurity Committee (NB – unlikely to be able to attend
routinely but in principle this link is required)

Sub-structures
The Board will oversee the work of a range of associated groups, including:
 An Incident Management Hub to maintain an overview of all outbreaks in the
County. Given the range of outbreaks that might be expected, it is likely that
this Hub will subsequently establish sub-groups covering care homes,
schools, and wider community settings – this however will be kept under
review;
 Outbreak Control Teams established as necessary to respond to individual
outbreaks that require greater levels of input and action than can be provided
by the Incident Management Hub;
 Testing and Contact Tracing Tactical/Operational Group to ensure that
the contact tracing system is operating effectively; ensure appropriate
deployment of local testing resources; and promote good liaison with
emerging national testing routes;
 Multi-Agency Intelligence Cell which will be responsible for collating and
communicating intelligence drawn from national and local data systems and
other local networks, supporting case finding and approaches to outbreak
control;
 Strategic Media Advisory Cell to ensure good public engagement with the
work of the Board;
 IPC Guidance Team that can both develop standing guidance and provide
detailed IPC support in outbreak situations.

Page 56

Allerdale Borough Council – Executive Reports and Key Decisions
1 August 2020 to 31 July 2021
Decision

Allerdale Investment
Partnership Amendments to
Partnership
Agreement

Date decision to be
made and decision
maker
Programme Director for
Workington

Portfolio Holder

Officer contact details

Fully exempt

June 2020

Page 57

Key Decision
Allerdale Investment
Partnership - updated
Project Plans and
Financial Position

Programme Director for
Workington

Key Decision
Allerdale Investment
Partnership Consideration of
Future Sites

Programme Director for
Workington

Key Decision
Allerdale Investment
Partnership - Disposal
of Future Sites

Head of Financial
Services

Fully exempt

June 2020

Fully exempt

Fully exempt

Agenda Item 8

June 2020

June 2020
Key Decision

Open/Exempt

Maryport Future High
Street Programme

Executive
15 July 2020

Key Decision

Page 58

In 2019 Allerdale was
successful in an
application for £150,000
to fund the
commissioning of
Specialist Regeneration
Consultants. Having
procured a Team of
Architects and other
professionals led by
Buttress, a business
case related to the
regeneration of Maryport
Town Centre has been
developed. If successful
with these proposals
funding could transform
the High Street for the
benefit of the local
community and visitors.
In accordance with
Government Guidelines
this document will need
to be available for
submission before the
end of July 2020.

Exempt

Executive Member and
Deputy Leader:
Economic Growth,
Community
Development and
Placemaking (Councillor
Mike Johnson)

Paul Taylor
paul.taylor@allerdale.go
v.uk

Revenue & Capital
Outturns 2019/20

Executive

Open

Councillor Jim Lister

15 July 2020

Catherine Nicholson,
Head of Financial
Services

Key Decision
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk

Page 59

To inform members of
the
• revenue outturn for
2019/20 and make
recommendations on
budget carry forwards
and transfers to and
from reserves.
• capital outturn position
for 2019/20 and to
approve the carryforward of capital
resources to 2020/21.
Allonby to Silloth
Executive
multi-user coastal path
15 July 2020
Key Decision
Silloth on Solway
Coastal Community
Team has secured £1
million of Coastal
Communities funding to
extend the coastal multiuser path from Allonby
to Silloth. Allerdale

Part exempt
If an open procurement
is considered the best
option tender returns
submitted may be
commercially sensitive.

Executive Member and
Deputy Leader:
Economic Growth,
Community
Development and
Placemaking (Councillor
Mike Johnson)

Joe Broomfield, Town
Centre Area Manager
joe.broomfield@allerdal
e.gov.uk

Borough Council is the
Accountable Body for
the Silloth on Solway
Coastal Community
Team and is leading on
the delivery of the
construction of the new
path. A procurement
exercise will be
undertaken to select a
lead contractor for the
construction phase of
the project.

Page 60

Cumbria Choice
Partnering Agreement
and Choice Based
Lettings Allocation
Policy
Key Decision
This is the Council's
policy for allocating
social housing in the
Allerdale. This policy
has being reviewed and
we are asking the
Executive to agree the
revised policy.

Executive
15 July 2020

Open

Executive Member:
Policy, Governance and
People Resources
(Councillor Marion
Fitzgerald)

Andrea Smith, Policy
Manager (Housing)
andrea.smith@allerdale.
gov.uk

Local Occupancy
Restrictions Policy

Executive

Open

15 July 2020
Key Decision

Page 61

To have in place a
formally adopted policy
that enforces s157
Housing Act 1985 and
that supports the
Council in meeting local
housing need in areas
where housing is limited.
Solway Coast AONB
Executive
Management Plan
15 July 2020
Key Decision
The statutory plan for
the conservation and
enhancement of the
natural beauty of the
Solway Coast, which is
designated by UK law as
an Area of Outstanding
Natural Beauty (AONB)
Appointments to
Executive
Outside Bodies
15 July 2020
Non-Key Decision
Appointments to outside

Open

Executive Member:
Policy, Governance and
People Resources
(Councillor Marion
Fitzgerald)

Andrea Smith, Policy
Manager (Housing)

Executive Member:
Leisure and Tourism
(Councillor John Cook)

Naomi Hewitt, Solway
Coast Area of
Outstanding Natural
Beauty Manager

andrea.smith@allerdale.
gov.uk

naomi.kay@allerdale.go
v.uk

Open

Executive Member:
Policy, Governance and
People Resources
(Councillor Marion
Fitzgerald)

Gayle Roach,
Democratic and Support
Services Manager
gayle.roach@allerdale.g
ov.uk

bodies that are an
Executive function.
Local Plan (part 2)

Executive

Key Decision

18 March 2020

Executive Member:
Policy, Governance and
People Resources
(Councillor Marion
Fitzgerald)

Julie Ward, Policy
Manager (Spatial)

Executive Member:
Finance and Legal
(Councillor Jim Lister)

Key Decision

Sharon Sewell, Head of
Governance and
Regulatory Services and
Monitoring Officer

Quarter 1 Finance
Report April to June
2020

sharon.sewell@allerdale
.gov.uk
Catherine Nicholson,
Head of Financial
Services

To consider the
Planning Inspector's
report and adoption of
Local Plan (part 2)
Annual Governance
Statement 2020/21

Open

Executive
Council
22 July 2020
Audit Committee

Open

29 July 2020

Page 62

Key Decision
To inform members of
the Council’s financial
performance against
budget for the period
April to June 2020 along
with the forecast position
to 31 March 2021

julie.ward@allerdale.gov
.uk

Executive
2 September 2020

Open

Councillor Jim Lister

catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk

Scrap Metal Dealers
Act 2013

Executive

Open

2 September 2020

Executive Member:
Finance and Legal
(Councillor Jim Lister)

Gillian Collinson, Senior
Licencing And
Compliance Officer

Key Decision
Review of fees and
charges and delegations
Proposed review of
Licensing Fees and
Charges

gillian.collinson@allerdal
e.gov.uk
Council

Open

16 September 2020

Executive Member:
Finance and Legal
(Councillor Jim Lister)

Gillian Collinson, Senior
Licencing And
Compliance Officer

Executive Member:
Finance and Legal
(Councillor Jim Lister)

gillian.collinson@allerdal
e.gov.uk
Catherine Nicholson,
Head of Financial
Services

Key Decision

Page 63

Capital Investment
Strategy 2020/21

Executive

Open

2 September 2020
Non-Key Decision
Council
To present the Capital
Investment Strategy
Strategic Review of
Homeless Services &
New Homeless
Strategy 2020-2025
Key Decision
Strategic review of
homeless services and
the development of a
new strategy 2020-2025

16 September 2020
Executive
14 October 2020

catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk
Open

Executive Member:
Policy, Governance and
People Resources
(Councillor Marion
Fitzgerald)

Andrea Smith, Policy
Manager (Housing)
andrea.smith@allerdale.
gov.uk

Statement of Accounts
2019/2020

Audit Committee

Open

Councillor Jim Lister

24 November 2020

Catherine Nicholson,
Head of Financial
Services

Non-Key Decision

Page 64

To present members
with the Statement of
Accounts for
consideration and
approval
2021/22 Budget
Strategy & Updated
Medium Term
Financial Plan 2020/21
to 2023/24

catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk

Executive

Open

Councillor Jim Lister

25 November 2020

Catherine Nicholson,
Head of Financial
Services
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk

Key Decision
To present the updated
Medium Term Financial
Plan (MTFP) and outline
the risks and
assumptions that will
underpin preparation of
the budget for 2021/22
Quarter 2 Finance
report and Revised
budget 2020/21

Executive
25 November 2020

Key Decision

Council

To inform members of

9 December 2020

Open

Councillor Jim Lister

Catherine Nicholson,
Head of Financial
Services
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk

the Council’s financial
performance against
budget for the period
April to September 2020
along with the forecast
position to 31 March
2021 and to seek
approval for the revised
revenue and capital
budgets for 2020-21
Treasury Management
Operations – Mid-year
review 2020/21

Audit Committee

Open

Councillor Jim Lister

Barry Lennox, Financial
Services Manager

24 November 2020

Page 65

Key Decision

Council

To inform members of
the Council’s treasury
management activities
during the six month
period ending 30th
September 2019
Treasury Management
Operation Annual
Report 2019/20

9 December 2020

Key Decision

Council

To inform members of
the performance of the
Council’s treasury
management activities

9 December 2020

Audit Committee

barry.lennox@allerdale.
gov.uk

Open

Councillor Jim Lister

Barry Lennox, Financial
Services Manager

29 September 2020
barry.lennox@allerdale.
gov.uk

for the year
Calculation of Council
Tax Base 2021/22

Council

Open

Councillor Jim Lister

27 January 2021

Catherine Nicholson,
Head of Financial
Services

Key Decision
To seek approval of the
calculation of the council
tax base for the whole
district and for each
parish and town council,
for 2021-22
Members Allowances
2020/21

catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk

Council

Open

Councillor Marion
Fitzgerald

Page 66

27 January 2021

Lee Jardine, Democratic
and Support Services
Officer

Non-Key Decision
To approve the
Members Allowances
Scheme for 2020/21.
Quarter 3 Finance
Report Oct to Dec
2020
Key Decision
To inform members of
the Council’s financial
performance against
budget for the period
April to December 2019
along with the forecast

lee.jardine@allerdale.go
v.uk

Executive
24 February 2021

Open

Councillor Jim Lister

Catherine Nicholson,
Head of Financial
Services
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk

position to 31 March
2020
Council Tax
Resolution Report
2021/22

Council

Open

Councillor Jim Lister

3 March 2021

Key Decision

catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk

Page 67

To approve the
necessary resolutions
for Council Tax setting in
accordance with
Sections 31 – 36 of the
Local Government
Finance Act 1992.
Revenue & Capital
Executive
Budget Proposals
2021/22
24 February 2021
Key Decision

Catherine Nicholson,
Head of Financial
Services

Council

To seek approval for the 3 March 2021
revenue and capital
budgets and to present
the formal advice of the
Chief Finance Officer on
the robustness of
estimates included in the
budget and the
adequacy of reserves
which support the
Council’s budgetary

Open

Councillor Jim Lister

Catherine Nicholson,
Head of Financial
Services
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk

plans
Capital Investment
Strategy 2021/22

Executive

Open

Councillor Jim Lister

24 February 2021

Catherine Nicholson,
Head of Financial
Services

Key Decision
Council
To present the Capital
Investment Strategy
Treasury Management
Strategy, Annual
Investment Strategy
and Minimum Revenue
Provision Policy
Statement 2021/22

3 March 2021
Audit Committee

catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk
Open

Councillor Jim Lister

Barry Lennox, Financial
Services Manager

25 February 2021
barry.lennox@allerdale.
gov.uk

Council

Page 68

3 March 2021
Key Decision
To present the Treasury
Management Strategy
Statement, Annual
Investment Strategy and
Minimum Revenue
Provision Policy
Statement
Pay Policy Statement
2021/22

Council
3 March 2021

Key Decision

Open

Executive Member:
Policy, Governance and
People Resources
(Councillor Marion
Fitzgerald)

Kathryn Higgins, HR
Advisor
kathryn.higgins@allerdal
e.gov.uk

Meetings of the Council, Executive and Scrutiny Committees are open to the public (except when exempt (confidential) items are
being considered). It is advisable to check the agenda before attending a meeting, as decision dates may be subject to change.

Agendas and supporting documents for meetings of the Executive can be found on the Council’s website www.allerdale.gov.uk or
at Allerdale House, Workington, Cumbria, CA14 3YJ
Further information is available by calling 01900 702502
Any representations as to why a meeting should be open to the public should be made in writing to Democratic Services at the
above address.
A list of the Executive members can be found at http://democracy.allerdale.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=11

Page 69

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 70

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020-2021
Further Information

Format

Council Strategy
Theme

Friday 17 July

Consideration of
the ongoing
public health
situation and
impact on the
organisation
Annual update
from the
Community
Safety
Partnership.

The Council’s role in recovery and the ongoing public health
situation includes test and trace activity, economic recovery,
supporting communities. There is also an ongoing impact on
council operations and finances. This item will be about
scoping scrutiny work around this wide ranging area.

Report and / or
presentation to
Committee

All Council strategy
priorities

Scrutiny of the Community Safety Partnership is written into
legislation as a requirement of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee. This is the only outside body which the Overview
and Scrutiny Committee is required to scrutinise. Relates to
the partnership rather than the detail of the work.

Update provided to
Committee via
presentation

All Council strategy
priorities

Development of
a Resilient
Communities
Strategy

The Resilient Communities Strategy will cover that theme of
the Council Strategy and will build in approaches around
healthy, active communities, inequalities and community
engagement and support. It will look to set out how we can
support communities across the district as we move out of the
current restrictions and into recovery.
Lead Officer – Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance
Portfolio Holder – Councillor Mike Johnson
To confirm any suggestions for improvements the committee
wishes to submit to the Constitution Review Group.
Lead Officer – Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance
Portfolio Holder – Councillor Marion Fitzgerald

Report and / or
presentation to
Committee

Resilient communities

Briefing note and
discussion

All Council strategy
priorities

Friday 28
August

Review of the
overview and
scrutiny section
of the
Constitution

Last updated: 08/07/2020

Agenda Item 9

Items

Page 71

Meeting Date

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020-2021
Items

Further Information

Friday 16
October

Update and
review of town
based
programmes in
Workington and
Maryport
Development of
a new Economic
Growth Strategy

These major programmes are central to the Interim Delivery
Report and / or
Plan. The meeting may either have single focus on one
presentation to
programme or a short update on each programme.
Committee
Lead Officer – Programme Director Workington; Programme Director Maryport
Regeneration
Portfolio Holder – Councillor Mike Johnson
This work includes pre-scrutiny of draft a new Economic
Report and / or
Growth Strategy for Allerdale to guide economic development presentation to
activity to ambitiously rethink and rebuild the local economy
Committee
over the longer term strategy.
This will be a key strategy document for the Council,
supporting the Council Strategy and recovery activity.
Lead Officer – Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance
Portfolio Holder – Councillor Mike Johnson
The Committee will consider reports regarding the financial
Reports and / or
and overall performance for the previous quarter to identify
presentation to
any aspects requiring detailed consideration.
Committee
Lead Officer – Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance
Portfolio Holder – All Portfolio Holders

Thriving towns and
villages
Invest to grow
Resilient communities
A cleaner, greener
Allerdale
Invest to grow

The Committee will consider what progress has been made on
the climate change agenda over the previous twelve months.

A cleaner, greener
Allerdale

Page 72

Meeting Date

Performance
management

Friday 27
November

Progress report
on climate
change

Format

Report and / or
presentation to
Committee

Council Strategy
Theme

All Council strategy
priorities

Lead Officer – Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance
Portfolio Holder – Councillor Marion Fitzgerald

Last updated: 08/07/2020

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020-2021

Page 73

Meeting Date

Items

Further Information

Format

Council Strategy
Theme

Friday 15
January 2021

Performance
management

The Committee will consider reports regarding the financial
and overall performance for the previous quarter to identify
any aspects requiring detailed consideration.
Lead Officer – Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance
Portfolio Holder – All Portfolio Holders

Reports and / or
presentation to
Committee

All Council strategy
priorities

Friday 26
February

Development of
a new Housing
Strategy

The current Housing Strategy runs up to 2021. Work will
begin later in 2020/21 to start developing a new strategy.

Report and / or
presentation to
Committee

Thriving towns and
villages
Invest to grow
Resilient communities

Lead Officer – Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance
Portfolio Holder – Councillor Marion Fitzgerald

Friday 26
March

Update and
review of town
based
programmes in
Workington and
Maryport

These major programmes are central to the Interim Delivery
Report and / or
Plan. The meeting may either have single focus on one
presentation to
programme or a short update on each programme.
Committee
Lead Officer – Programme Director Workington; Programme Director Maryport
Regeneration
Portfolio Holder – Councillor Mike Johnson

Thriving towns and
villages
Invest to grow
Resilient communities
A cleaner, greener
Allerdale

Friday 23 April

Reports from
representatives
to other
scrutiny bodies

There are a number of other scrutiny bodies which the Council
is represented on. Other scrutiny bodies to provide update on
their work:
LEP Scrutiny Board
Cumbria Police and Crime Panel Joint Committee
Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee

Resilient communities

Presentation /
Committee meeting
agenda item

Last updated: 08/07/2020

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020-2021
Meeting Date

Items

Further Information

Annual work
programme
2021-2022

Sellafield sites stakeholder group
Lead Officer – Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance
Portfolio Holder – Councillor
Consideration of items for the work programme during the
next municipal year.
Lead Officer – Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance

Format

Council Strategy
Theme

Committee meeting
agenda item

All Council strategy
priorities

Page 74

Regular items for each Committee agenda
Items

Council Plan Purpose
Priority

Lead Officer

Lead
Portfolio
Holder

Lead Scrutiny
Member

Forward Plan

All Council Plan
priorities

To identify any forthcoming items
which the Committee may consider

Head of Governance and
Regulatory Services

Leader of the
Council

Work Programme
Updates

All Council Plan
priorities

Policy Officer (Scrutiny and
Partnerships)

Not applicable

Task and Finish
Group Updates

All Council Plan
priorities

To provide the Committee with the
opportunity to review its’ own
work plan for the rest of the year
To receive progress reports from
any Task and Finish Group

Policy Officer (Scrutiny and
Partnerships)

Not applicable

Co-Chairs of the
Overview and Scrutiny
Committee
Co-Chairs of the
Overview and Scrutiny
Committee
Chair of individual
Task and Finish
Groups

Last updated: 08/07/2020

